
 
 

Ron Sellers Ron Hirst Daniel P. Friesen Courthouse 

District 1 District 2 District 3 206 W. 1st Avenue 

Member Chair Vice-Chair Hutchinson, KS 67501 

     

 

AGENDA 
 

Reno County Annex  

125 W. 1st Avenue   

Tuesday, January 11, 2022, 9:00 AM 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Prayer 

 

III. Welcome and Announcements by Commission Chair 

 

IV. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda  
Please come forward to the podium, state your name and address and limit your remarks to not more than 5 

minutes per item. 

 

V. Determine Additions or Revisions to the Agenda 

 

VI. Consent Agenda 

 VI.A Vouchers (bills or payments owed by the county or related taxing units). 

 VI.B Purchase of one 2022 Ford F-150 Responder Pickup from Midwest Motors for a net 

  cost of $12,693.00. 

 VI.C Purchase of four 2022 Ford Interceptor SUV Hybrids from Midway Motors for a net  

  cost of $114,708. 

 VI.D Resolution declaring and establishing certain regulation of the streets and highways 

  pursuant to K.S.A. 8-2002 (Mohawk Road and Clark Road). 

VII. Business Items 

 VII.A Tabled from 12/14/2021: Planning Case #2020-09 - A request by the Reno County 

  Planning Commission for a series of text amendments to the April 2016 Edition of 

  the Reno County Zoning Regulations regarding Commercial Wind Energy 

  Conversion Systems (CWECS). 

 VII.B Tabled from 12/14/2021: Planning Case # 2021-14 - A request to amend the 

  jurisdiction of the Official Zoning District Boundary Map as identified in Article 1- 

  103 of the Zoning Regulations. 

 VII.C Reno County Employee Classification and Compensation Study Discussion 

VIII. County Administrator Report 

 VIII.A Monthly Department Reports 

 VIII.B Financial Report 

IX. County Commission Report/Comments 



X. Executive Session  
 X.A 30 Minute Executive Session for non-elected personnel; with action to take place 

  following the Executive Session. 

 X.B 30 Minute Executive Session for attorney-client privileged legal matters; with no 

  action to take place. 

 X.C 15 Minute Executive Session for non-elected personnel. 

XI. Commission Reorganization 

 XI.A Reorganization of the Board of County Commissioners 

XII. Adjournment  



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #VI.B

AGENDA DATE: January 11, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Captain Levi Blumanhourst

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Purchase of one 2022 Ford F-150 Responder Pickup from Midwest Motors for a net cost of $12,693.00.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Sheriff's Office operates and maintains a fleet of Ford Interceptor SUV's and Ford F-150 Police
Responders.  A request for quotes was submitted on October 25th, 2021 for one 2022 F-150 Police
Responder Pickup.  Quotes were received from Midway Motors of Hutchinson and Midwest Motors of
Hutchinson.  The sealed quotes were opened on November 16, 2021. 
 
Ford F-150 Police Responder Pickups are driven by the Patrol Sergeants for the Reno County Sheriff's
Office.  The F-150 allows for versatility compared to the rest of the SUV fleet.  A pickup allows for
more towing options for light trailers, generators and has a bed that can be used for large items which
the SUV's are not able to accommodate.  During inclement weather there are some roads that remain
impassible with SUV's and the F-150 pickups can then be used to respond to calls for service.
 
Midwest Motors quote was $576.00 less than the quote from Midway Motors for one Ford F-150 Police
Responder Pickup including the trade of one pickup from our fleet.  
 

ALL OPTIONS:
Purchase one Ford F-150 Responder Pickup from Midwest Motors for $12,693.00
 
Purchase one Ford F-150 Responder Pickup from Midway Motors for $13,269.00

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Purchase one 2022 Ford F-150 Responder Pickup from Midwest Motors with $12,693.00 of budgeted
funds from the 2022 budget.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
The F-150 Responder Pickup will be purchased with funds budgeted for vehicles from the Sheriff's (06)
budget.  



































































AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #VI.D

AGENDA DATE: January 11, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Don Brittain - Public Works Director

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Resolution declaring and establishing certain regulation of the streets and highways pursuant to K.S.A.
8-2002 (Mohawk Road and Clark Road).

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Legislature has provided that local authorities may exercise police power with respect to streets and
highways under their jurisdiction pursuant to K.S.A.8-2002. Be it resolved by the Board of County
Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas that the following traffic regulations should be in force:
Intersection of Mohawk Road and Clark Road a Stop Sign shall be posed for southbound traffic on
Mohawk Road at its intersection with Clark Road.

ALL OPTIONS:
Approval and signature of Resolution.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Adopt and sign the resolution.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -          
A RESOLUTION DECLARING AND ESTABLISHING CERTAIN REGULATION

OF THE STREETS AND HIGHWAYS PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 8-2002
(Mohawk Road and Clark Road)

WHEREAS, the Legislature has provided that local authorities may exercise police 
power with respect to streets and highways under their jurisdiction pursuant to
K.S.A. 8-2002.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Reno County, Kansas that the following traffic regulations shall be in force:

Intersection of Mohawk Road and Clark Road:
Stop Sign shall be posted for southbound traffic on Mohawk Road at its intersection with 
Clark Road.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that from and after the posting of the traffic control
signs as hereinabove directed, the driver of any vehicle shall obey and comply with the
instructions of said traffic control devices applicable thereto and place in accordance with
the Uniform Traffic Control Manual, unless otherwise directed by a law enforcement officer
or permitted by other legal authority.

This resolution shall be effective from and after the date of its adoption and when
the posting requirements have been satisfied.

ADOPTED in regular session this day of , 2022.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS

Chairman, Daniel P Friesen

Member, Ron Sellers

Member, Ron Hirst

ATTEST:

Reno County Clerk



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #VII.A

AGENDA DATE: January 11, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Board of County Commissioners

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Tabled from 12/14/2021:  Planning Case #2020-09 - A request by the Reno County Planning
Commission for a series of text amendments to the April 2016 Edition of the Reno County Zoning
Regulations regarding Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems (CWECS).

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Planning Case #2020-09 was presented to the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) on February 9,
2021.  The BOCC entered into a Work Study Session later that day and the minutes of said meeting are
attached. 

During the BOCC's regular agenda session on February 23, 2021, the BOCC accepted public
comments regarding the CWECS proposed regulations.
On March 9, 2021 during the BOCC's regular agenda session, the CWECS proposed regulations
were tabled until April 13, 2021.  
During the BOCC's regular agenda session on April 13, 2021, the CWECS proposed regulations
were tabled until May 25, 2021.
During the BOCC's regular agenda session on May 25, 2021, the CWECS proposed regulations
were tabled until further notice.
During their regular agenda session on August 24, 2021, the BOCC approved placing the
CWECS proposed regulations on the September 14, 2021 agenda.  The BOCC further established
public comments would not be accepted during their discussion of said item on September 14th. 
They welcomed the public to submit comments and questions before September 14th.
This item should be considered for adoption prior to adopting and expanding zoning countywide
as found under Case #2021-14.  Failure to adopt Article 23 will result in the current wind energy
conversion system regulations adopted in 2016 to remain in effect.

ALL OPTIONS:
Approve the Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems Regulations as recommended by the
Planning Commission
Table the amendment to study the document further.
Table the amendment and refer it back to the Planning Commission.
Deny the amendment as submitted by the Planning Commission.  Denying the amendment will
require the entire public hearing process to begin again if the County Commissioners still request
new regulations. 

https://renogov.org/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Minutes/_02232021-472
https://renogov.org/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Minutes/_03092021-473
https://renogov.org/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Minutes/_04132021-478
https://renogov.org/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Minutes/_05252021-487


RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Remove from the table and approve of Article 23 - Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System
regulations as recommended by staff and the Planning Commission.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDA ITEM #7F on the 02-09-2021 Agenda

















































ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-1 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

Sections: 

23-101 Purpose and Intent 

23-102 Applicability 

23-103 Definitions 

23-104 Circumstances Requiring Application of the CWECS 

23-105 Content of a Development Plan and Plan of Operation 

23-106 Documents, Plans, Studies, Reports, Other Permits 

23-107 Additional Required Topics to be Included in Submittals 

23-108 Special Regulations Applicable for a Conditional Use Permit for a CWECS 

23-109 Agreements and Requirements 

23-110 Requirements for a Zoning Permit 

23-111 Construction Requirements 

 

23-101 Purpose and Intent: 

 

The purpose of this Article is to ensure a regulatory means of facilitating wind energy development of a 

Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System within the unincorporated portion of Reno County having 

zoning jurisdiction by providing reasonable requirements for the submittal of proposals for the establishment 

of a CWECS to provide adequate information to the officials of Reno County charged with the responsibility 

to review said proposals. 

 

To the extent there are conflicts between the requirements of Article 23 and other provisions of the Reno 

County Zoning Regulations, it is intended that the requirements of Article 23 shall control the interpretation 

of the Zoning Regulations. 

 

23-102 Applicability: 

 

All CWECS development within this Article, as described herein, shall comply with the standards and 

procedures of this Article and those required for a Conditional Use Permit as stated in Articles 8 and 15.  It 

shall be understood the "timeline" restrictions in Articles 8 and 15 are not applicable to a CWECS project 

because of the overall time for the development and construction.   

 

Placement of a small Wind Energy Conversion System shall be permitted as an accessory use as defined in 

Article 9-102(4) and Article 9-103(4) of the Zoning Regulations. 

 

Article 20-104(2) of the Zoning Regulations shall not be used to modify, adjust, or change any requirement 

under Article 23. 

 

23-103 Definitions:   

 

1. Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System means an electrical generating facility that operates by 

converting the kinetic energy of wind into electrical energy and is comprised of one or more turbines 

and accessory facilities, including but not limited to, ancillary operational meteorological towers, 

overhead and underground communication and electrical transmission lines, transformers, substations, 

roads, administrative and operations buildings, turbines, supervisory control and data acquisition 

(SCADA) facilities, and other associated facilities. The energy may be used on-site or distributed into 

the electrical grid.  A CWECS is further defined as producing 100kW of electricity or greater. 

 

2. Participating landowner means an individual, a group of individuals, a trust, or other entity owning 

real property who or which has signed a lease agreement with the owner or operator of a commercial 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-2 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

wind energy conversion system project for the placement of turbines, other project components on the 

real property, or otherwise agrees to participate in the wind energy project. 

 

3. Non-participating landowner means an individual, group of individuals, a trust, or other entity owning 

real property who or which has not signed a lease agreement with the owner or operator of a 

commercial wind energy conversion system project for the placement of turbines or other project 

components on the real property. 

 

4. Qualified third-party company means an independent individual or entity that is not owned by, 

operated by, or a subsidiary of the current owner or subsequent owners of a CWECS or a property 

owner within the project boundary, who is qualified to perform the required analysis and is agreed 

upon by the applicant and county commission. 

 

5. A turbine means the total structural components used to convert the wind's kinetic energy into 

electrical energy.   

 

6. The total height of the turbine means measuring from the elevation of the ground surface at the base 

of the turbine up to the height of the turbine measured at the highest point of the blade system during 

its rotation. 

 

7. Accessory building shall have the same meaning as defined in Article 1-104(4) of the Zoning 

Regulations. 

 

8. Principal building shall mean a primary residential structure.  A principal residential structure shall 

not include a guest house or buildings whose purpose is to store equipment, commodities, or animals. 

 

23-104 Circumstances Requiring Application of the CWECS Article: 

 

The following circumstances require application of this Article and sets standards and procedures within the 

designated Article: 

 

1. An application for a Conditional Use Permit for a CWECS; or 

 

2. An application for a conditional use permit for an expansion of a CWECS beyond the area previously 

approved by a conditional use permit. 

 

3. Each application for a conditional use permit shall include a written agreement by the Applicant to 

reimburse the County for all unusual and extraordinary expenses incurred by the County to process 

the application and conduct the public hearing. 

  

23-105 Content of a Development Plan and Plan of Operation: 

 

The information listed below shall be submitted with the conditional use permit application.  It shall be the 

duty of the Zoning Administrator to determine when a conditional use permit application is complete and ready 

to schedule for a public hearing.  All information listed below shall be submitted prior to the Planning 

Commission making a recommendation.  The Planning Commission or Board of County Commissioners may 

require additional information not listed below. 

 

1. A project map drawn at a scale of not less than 1” = 2,000’ showing the additional information as 

outlined in this Article 23-105 including the following: 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-3 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

A. All development plan requirements under Article 8-103 of the Zoning Regulations. 

 

B. Project boundary and the total acreage. 

 

C. The center point of each turbine and MET tower with Latitude/Longitude Coordinates. 

 

D. The location of the operation and maintenance facility of the project or any other facility to 

serve the project. 

 

E. The location of any temporary assembly areas or other areas used for the construction of the 

CWECS. 

 

F. All public roads, access roads, and temporary access roads serving the project. 

 

G. The project shall indicate compliance with all requirements contained in Article 23.  

 

H. A secondary project map drawn at a scaled of not greater than 1” = 600’ that shows each 

individual turbine site, and which also includes all other relevant information required by this 

Article. 

 

I. Land identified as a special flood hazard area. 

 

J. Land identified by the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism, or U.S. 

Department of Agriculture, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service as a wetland, native vegetation 

area, wildlife habitat, or critical species habitat worthy of special consideration or protection. 

 

K. All required setbacks and requirements around land uses as described in Article 23. 

 

2. A general project introduction and plan of operation that describes the total number of proposed 

turbines, alternate turbine sites, total height of the turbines from the ground to the tip of the blade, 

meteorological towers, operation and maintenance facility, temporary construction sites, number of 

participating property owners, total acreage of the project, miles of new access roads, anticipated 

construction schedule, and other relevant information as deemed appropriate by the applicant or as 

required by county staff, the Planning Commission, or Board of County Commissioners. 

 

23-106 Documents, Plans, Studies, Reports, Other Permits: 

 

The information listed below shall be submitted with the conditional use permit application and used to 

evaluate compliance with the Zoning Regulations.  The Planning Commission or Board of County 

Commissioners may require additional information not listed in Article 23-106 or conduct separate studies for 

the purpose of evaluating the proposed conditional use permit.  Payment for the information cost may be 

negotiated in the Development Agreement. 

 

1. Documentation acceptable to the County that the Applicant has signed lease agreements currently in 

effect to use the land in the manner requested.  The Applicant may redact sensitive financial or 

confidential information. 

 

2. List of adjacent property owners within the then current minimum zoning regulation requirement of 

the subject property boundary proposed to receive a turbine(s), MET tower(s), the operation and 

maintenance facility, or a temporary use associated with the project.  The list of adjacent property 

owners shall be from the subject property boundary, not from the lease area.  The list of adjacent 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-4 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

property owners shall be sent electronically, be in an Excel Spreadsheet format and contain the 

property owner’s name, mailing address of the owner, physical address of the property, and parcel 

identification number (PIN). 

 

3. An expected economic impact report to the County which assumes the proposed project is approved 

and constructed as proposed on the conditional use permit application.  The report shall be prepared 

by an independent third-party company or four-year college institution. 

 

4. An acoustic study prepared by an independent third-party company.  The study shall include maps and 

charts that indicate the anticipated sound level expected at each principal building and explain the 

methodology used to compute the anticipated sound levels. 

 

5. A shadow flicker study prepared by an independent third-party company.  The study shall include 

maps and charts that indicate the anticipated amount of shadow flicker expected at each principal 

building and explains the methodology used to compute the anticipated shadow flicker.  The study 

shall show the anticipated number of hours per year a principal building will receive shadow flicker, 

the time of day, and time of year. 

 

6. A written document from the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism (KDWPT) or its 

successor indicating the applicant has contacted the agency regarding the proposed CWECS.  The 

document should state KDWPT has been contacted by the applicant regarding the proposal and has 

reviewed or is currently reviewing the proposal for any concerns regarding the operations of KDWPT. 

 

7. All setback, noise or shadow flicker waivers are to be executed by all owners of an affected parcel.  

All such waivers shall be notarized and submitted with the conditional use permit application. 

 

8. A report shall be conducted by a third-party company on existing environment concerns and filed with 

the conditional use permit application.  The report should include, but not be limited to, information 

regarding: 

A. Wildlife habitats, native prairie grass, and vegetation information relevant to the project site. 

 

B. An avian study to include all types of Eagles, Whooping Cranes, and other sensitive species 

as affected by the project.  The plan should include a discussion on bird migration and the 

potential for bird strikes. 

 

C. Flora - vegetation species, threatened species (officially listed), critical habitat and habitat 

conditions for such species relevant to the project site. 

 

D. Fauna - species, habitat assessment, threatened species (officially listed), migratory species, 

critical habitat, and habitat conditions for such species. 

 

E. Geo-conservation - sites of geo-conservation significance listed on the state or national 

database. 

 

F. Special flood hazard areas and wetland areas identified on the FSA Wetland Map. 

 

 

 

 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-5 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

23-107 Additional Required Topics to be Included in Submittals: 

 

In addition to the requirements of Article 8, an application for a CWECS project shall address specific issues 

related with the project that include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. In addition to strict conformance to all performance standards and development plan requirements as 

detailed in the Reno County Zoning Regulations, the development plan shall address the following: 

 

A. The "boundary" of the project shall be the properties included within the "leased lands" on 

which the CWECS is proposed to be constructed. The specific siting of individual components 

of the CWECS, including turbines, supporting structures, and all other aspects which entail a 

complete CWECS as recognized within the industry, may be included conceptually within the 

development plan and are permitted to be moved and adjusted as necessary during the design 

and construction process without modifications to the approved development plan, so long as 

new lands are not added to the original "boundary"  of the CWECS and the relocation conforms 

to all requirements of Article 23.  Any relocation of individual components contrary to the 

approved site plan shall be identified on a revised site plan and submitted to the Public Works 

Department – Planning and Zoning Division for review and approval. 

 

B. All setback designations herein, when referenced as 'total height", shall mean "Total Tip 

Height", which is the total height of the turbine measured at the highest point of the blade 

system during its rotation, or with respect to any other structure including a meteorological 

tower, its total height.  All horizontal setbacks shall be measured from the center point of the 

turbine to the edge point from which the setback is required. 

 

2. Setbacks: 

 

A. No turbine shall be located closer than 2,000 3,000 2,500 feet or four six five times the height 

of the turbine whichever is greater from a participating or non-participating principal building.  

A principal building landowner may waive the setback requirement.  No waiver shall result in 

a setback of less than the height of the turbine plus 50 feet. 

 

B. No turbine shall be located closer than the total height of the turbine plus 50 feet from an 

accessory building, property line, or road right-of-way line. 

 

C. A private airstrip is defined as a location that is registered with the Kansas Department of 

 Transportation and Federal Aviation Administration, appears on aeronautical charts, and has 

 a landing surface(es) which is/are maintained and capable of providing a safe landing for 

 aircraft.  All such requirements must be in effect at the time a conditional use permit 

 application is accepted by the county staff as being complete. 

 

D. Setbacks from a public airport and/or private airstrip shall be two (2) nautical miles, calculated 

as 12,160 feet, from the approach ends of the runway and then by 1.5 nautical miles, calculated 

as 9,120 feet from the upwind and downwind sides of the runway.  

 

E. A private airport/private airstrip owner may waive the setback requirement for a parcel 

identified in Article 23-107(2)(E)(D).  All other requirements in Article 23 shall be enforced. 

 

F. No turbine may be located within any recorded easement.  The applicant shall consult with the 

 owner of an easement to eliminate any blanket easements on tracts of land and to establish a 

 defined legal description for the easement. 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-6 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

G. Properties owned or managed by the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism 

(KDWPT) or any wildlife refuge owned or managed by the United States of America tend to 

concentrate wildlife to an area due to the habitat enhancements conducted on a property. These  

 

lands are important wildlife migration corridors and migration staging areas.  To avoid 

disruption of these areas, no turbine shall be located within three (3) miles of a parcel owned 

or managed by the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism or the United States 

of America. Compliance with all other setback requirements is required.   

 

H. No turbine shall be located within one mile of an incorporated city boundary at the 

 time a conditional use permit application is accepted by county staff as being complete.   

 

I. If during construction a turbine site is determined to be adversely impacted after discovered 

environmental or other factors legally preventing its use, the applicant shall have the right to 

relocate a turbine on the parcel.  The relocated turbine shall still comply with all applicable 

requirements of Article 23 and all conditions of approval associated with the conditional use 

permit. 

 

3. Noise: 

 

A. An acoustic assessment analysis and map prepared by a third-party company shall be required 

with a conditional use permit application. The acoustic study shall analyze the expected 

audible noise level on a one (1) hour continuous sound level in decibels (Leq) basis at each 

primary occupied residential structure within the project boundary and explain the 

methodology used to achieve the results of the study.   

 

B. To assist in minimizing noise generated by the turbine, the applicant shall use turbine blades 

that are equipped with Low Noise Trailing Edge (LNTE) technology and blade serrations or 

other available noise reduction technology. 

 

C. The maximum received sound level shall not be more than 45 decibels(dBA) one (1) hour Leq 

at every participating and non-participating principal building and be measured at the nearest 

wall of the principal building.  A principal building shall not include an accessory structure or 

guest house as defined by the Reno County Zoning Regulations. [45 decibels during the day  

sunrise to sunset and 40 decibels during the night]  

 

D. A participating or non-participating landowner may waive the decibel levels exceeding the 

  requirements of this section. 

4. Shadow Flicker: 

A. Shadow flicker analysis and map prepared by a third-party company shall be required with a 

conditional use permit application.  The shadow flicker study shall analyze the expected 

annual number of hours and the specific times the shadow flicker is expected to occur at each 

principal building within the project boundary and explain the methodology used to achieve 

the results of the study. 

 

B. To minimize the effects of shadow flicker, the applicant shall utilize the data from the shadow 

flicker report to assist landowners in reducing the number of hours of shadow flicker to the 

minimum requirement of the zoning regulations. The applicant and landowner shall 

collaborate and decide the best means to reducing the amount of shadow flicker. 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-7 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

 

C. The maximum number of shadow flicker hours per year a participating or non-participating 

principal building shall receive is 30 and a maximum of 20 minutes per day. 

 

D. A participating or non-participating landowner may waive the shadow flicker limit 

requirement. 

 

5. Communication Lines: 

 

A. Communication lines and power collection lines are to be installed underground in the area 

covered by the CUP with use of directional boring, horizontal drilling, micro-tunneling, 

vibrating plowing, narrow trench ditching and other techniques in the construction of facilities.  

Such processes are intended to result in the least amount of disruption and damage as possible 

to the surface soil and natural features.  Said lines are to be located under or at the edge of 

turbine access roads. When conditions on-site are found to make installation of underground 

supporting lines impractical or infeasible, for example the presence of existing underground 

lines or pipelines that conflict with such type of construction, above ground transmission lines 

may be used only in public rights-of-way, easements or other legal documents dedicated for 

such purposes. 

 

B. The applicant shall contact the Reno County Emergency Management Director to coordinate 

meetings with other local emergency service personnel to develop a plan to address any 

potential interruptions in 911 calls being blocked due to the construction of turbines.  The 

applicant shall submit a written report detailing the plan to mitigate any potential interruption 

in services. 

 

C. Any installation of above ground or below ground communication lines or power collection 

lines within a Special Flood Hazard Area will require a floodplain development permit. 

 

6. Rotor Blades: 

 

A. The lowest point of the rotor blades shall be at least 50 feet above ground level at the base of 

each turbine. 

 

B. Rotor blades shall be painted a non-reflective neutral color such as white or grey.  The rotor 

blades shall be painted the same color as the turbine and nacelle. 

 

C. Rotor blades shall not display company names, markings, or advertising logos. 

 

7. Lubricants and Hazardous Materials: 

 

All lubricants and/or hazardous materials to be located on the premises in connection with the CWECS 

facility shall be kept and transported in accordance with all state and Federal regulations. 

 

8. Lighting: 

 

A. Lighting of the turbines shall utilize the current Aircraft Detection Lighting System (ADLS) 

or other similar or advanced technology. 

B. Any other lighting requirements on the turbines shall comply with, but not exceed, the 

minimum FAA requirements. 

  



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-8 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

C. White strobe lights on the turbines or any other aspect of the project are prohibited. 

 

D. Lights associated with the operation and maintenance facility, or other aspects of the project 

shall be directed so as not to shine directly on any adjacent property line or public road. 

 

E. Security and safety lighting shall be designed to shield the glare onto a property or public road. 

 

9. Turbines and Nacelles: 

 

A. Structures for turbines shall be self-supporting tubular towers painted a neutral color such as 

a white or grey.  The structure shall be painted the same color as the rotor blades. 

 

B. Lattice structures or other types of design are prohibited. 

 

C. A turbine and nacelle shall not display any advertising except for identification of the 

manufacturer.  Any signs, flags, streamers, or similar items are prohibited.  Other warning 

signs, placards, or required signs by a government agency are excluded from this prohibition. 

 

D. To aid in preventing unauthorized climbing of the turbine, all ladder rungs or other potential 

climbing assistance objects shall be removed up to 15 feet above the ground surface. 

 

E. Telecommunication antennas or other type of antennas used for transmission of radio signals 

not associated with a CWECS are prohibited. 

 

10. Operation Requirements: 

 

A. The CWECS, and its associated facilities, shall not be operated so as to cause microwave, 

television, radio,  telecommunication, or navigation interference contrary to Federal 

Communications Commission (FCC) regulations or other laws to occupied structures existing 

as of the date of the CUP approval.  In the event the CWECS and its associated facilities or its 

operations cause such interference, the applicant shall take timely measures necessary to 

correct the problem. 

 

B. Documentation shall be submitted by the applicant indicating compliance with minimum FCC 

Regulations. 

 

11. Ice/Blade Debris Throw: 

 

An ice throw analysis and map prepared by a third-party company shall be required with a conditional 

use permit application.  The ice throw study shall analyze the conditions which may cause ice or blade 

debris to be thrown off an in-motion turbine blade and toward an occupied structure within the project 

boundary.  The study should explain the methodology used in evaluating the risk of damage to 

occupied principal buildings.  Also included in the study should be the manufacturer’s setback 

distances related to in-motion ice or blade debris throws and the type of ice monitoring sensors and 

devices installed in each turbine and the potential maximum distance ice or blade debris could be 

thrown from an in-motion turbine blade. 

 

 

 

 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-9 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

12. Soil Erosion, Sediment Control, Stormwater Runoff, and Wetlands: 

 

The Applicant shall develop a Soil Erosion, Sediment Control and Stormwater Runoff Plan.  The Plan 

shall address what type of erosion control measures will be implemented during each phase of the 

project.  The Plan shall address the following concerns: 

 

A. Grading. 

 

B. Construction and drainage of access roads and turbine pads. 

 

C. Necessary soil information. 

 

D. Design features to maintain downstream water quality. 

 

E. Re-vegetation of disturbed area to ensure slope stability. 

 

F. Restoration of the site after temporary project activities have ended. 

 

G. Creation of a new wetland area that is equal to or greater than any wetland area that is filled 

in or destroyed. 

 

H. Disposal or storage of excavated materials. 

 

I. Protecting exposed soil. 

 

J. Stabilizing restored material and removal of silt fences or barriers when the area is stabilized. 

 

K. Maintenance of erosion control measures throughout the life of the project. 

 

If required, the Applicant shall obtain an erosion control permit for the project from the Kansas 

Department of Health and Environment (KDHE).  The approved erosion control permit shall be 

submitted prior to the issuance of a zoning permit.  The measures listed above shall be the minimum 

required under the issued KDHE permit. 

 

13. Special Flood Hazard Areas: 

 

A. If required, the Applicant shall obtain a floodplain development permit from the Kansas 

Department of Agriculture – Division of Water Resources, for any development identified as 

being located in a special flood hazard area.  Such development could include, but not be 

limited to, the placement of a turbine, construction of a road, location of electrical lines under 

a stream, or location of a building. 

 

B. Prior to starting construction activities, the applicant shall obtain a local floodplain 

development permit for all construction in the special flood hazard area prior to the issuance 

of a zoning permit or for any portion of the project not requiring a zoning permit. 

 

C. To the extent feasible, the design of the CWECS project should have a minimal impact of land 

identified as within a special flood hazard area.  It is expected of the applicant to locate all 

turbines and buildings out of the special flood hazard area so the project will have a minimum 

impact on the special flood hazard area. 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-10 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

23-108 Special Regulations Applicable for a Conditional Use Permit for a CWECS: 

 

The timeline restrictions in Article 8 and Article 15 are not applicable to a CWECS project because of the 

overall length of time necessary for the development and construction of the project.  With respect to a CWECS 

project approved after the adoption of this section: 

 

1. For all Conditional Use Permits approved for a CWECS project, a zoning permit shall be applied for 

within two (2) years of the approved CUP.  Approval of the CUP is effective (the “EFFECTIVE 

DATE”) when the County Commissioners’ Resolution approving the same is published in the official 

county newspaper.  If construction of the project cannot be commenced within that two (2) year period, 

the applicant may obtain a single one-year extension upon the submission of a written report to the 

Board of County Commissioners describing the reason(s) for the delay and the plan for commencing 

construction within the one-year extension period.  The one-year extension must be approved prior to 

the expiration of the original two-year period. 

 

2.  For all Conditional Use Permits approved for a CWECS project, such permit shall be permitted to 

continue, as-long-as all conditions placed on the permit are met. However, if the CWECS project 

construction has not commenced within two (2) years following approval of the CUP or any extension 

thereof as aforesaid, the CUP shall have expired, and the development plan is forfeited.   In such event, 

the Applicant will not be permitted to pursue the Development Plan until a new application is 

submitted, a new public hearing held, and a new CUP is approved. 

 

23-109  Agreements and Requirements: 

 

Prior to the issuance of the zoning permits, the Applicant of the CWECS and the Board of County 

Commissioners shall enter into a Development Agreement with respect to the subject matters outlined below 

under such terms and conditions acceptable to the Board of County Commissioners.  A Development 

Agreement shall be executed by the Applicant and the Board of County Commissioners within 120 days 

following the EFFECTIVE DATE or the CUP approval will have terminated at the discretion of the Board of 

County Commissioners.  This list of agreements and specific requirements can be supplemented or removed 

by mutual agreement of both parties. 

 

The following subject matters may be addressed, in the discretion of the County Commissioners, in a 

Development Agreement or series of Development Agreements and shall not be considered exclusive of all 

such matters: 

 

1. A Road Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement Agreement. 

 

The Road Maintenance Agreement may include, but shall not be limited to, such topics as: 

 

A. Designation of the public roads used for transportation routes for construction and 

maintenance of the CWECS shall be included within the mandatory Road Maintenance 

Agreement specified in these Regulations. 

 

B. The applicant shall receive an Oversized/Overweight permit from the Reno County Public 

Works Department for transporting CWECS components that are over the legal weight, width, 

or length limit.  A proposed route shall be submitted on the Oversized/Overweight Permit for 

transportation routes by the applicant.  The transportation route shall be approved by the Public 

Works Department by signature on the permit form. 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-11 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

C. Applicant shall construct the smallest number of turbine access roads as reasonably feasible.  

Access roads shall be low profile roads so farming equipment can cross them.  Where an 

access road crosses a stream or drainageway, it shall be designed and constructed so runoff 

from the upper portions of the watershed can readily flow to the lower portion of the 

watershed.  Where an access road crosses a stream or drainage way identified as a Special 

Flood Hazard Area, the applicant shall obtain a floodplain development permit from the state 

and county. 

 

2. A Decommissioning Agreement with the Board of County Commissioners pertaining to CWECS 

improvements. 

 

The Decommission Agreement may include, but shall not be limited to, such topics as: 

 

A. Removal of the turbine and nacelle. 

 

B. Removal of a portion of the concrete base down to a minimum of four feet below ground 

surface. 

 

C. Replacing the two bottom feet with subsoil composed of sand, silt, and clay materials and the 

top two feet with topsoil suitable for agriculture purposes. 

 

D. Removal of access roads. 

 

E. Re-seeding of disturbed areas. 

 

F. Timeline for removal. 

 

G. Removal of electrical equipment. 

 

H. Recognition of a landowner’s right to request access roads be left intact. 

 

I. Recognition of a landowner’s right to be satisfied with the decommission efforts of the 

applicant or a hired contractor. 

 

J. Additional circumstances which may require the decommissioning of a turbine(s). 

 

3. An Indemnification Agreement: 

 

An Indemnification Agreement with the County throughout the life of the project and a policy of 

general liability insurance with policy limits satisfactory to the Board of County Commissioners which 

identifies the County as an additional insured. 

 

4. A Dispute and Mitigation Agreement: 

 

A Dispute and Mitigation Agreement procedure and resolution process by which the Developer shall 

address complaints by landowners or other affected parties regarding the project from construction to 

operation and throughout the life of the project. 

 

 

 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-12 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

5. A Bird Strike and Reporting Agreement: 

 

A Bird Strike and Reporting Agreement may be established and include an annual report submitted to 

the County Commissioners indicating all reported bird strikes related to the project. 

 

6. Professional Certification Agreement: 

 

A written certification by a licensed and qualified professional engineer, approved by the County, that 

each turbine location complies with all setback requirements. 

 

7. A Payment In lieu of Tax Agreement (PILOT): 

 

An agreement which adequately compensates the County for governmental services provided in the 

project boundary during a ten-year period of tax exemption. 

 

8. Fire Safety, Rescue, and Hazardous Material Plan: 

 

The Plan shall be reviewed by the Emergency Management Director.  Within the Plan, the applicant 

shall identify the potential fire risk associated with the project, including both prescribed burning and 

non-prescribed burning (natural or accidental).  The Plan shall address fire within the project boundary, 

fire escaping from the site, and the effects of a fire originating from outside the site.  The plan shall 

demonstrate how the CWECS  equipment, environment, and private properties are protected from fire 

and hazardous materials. 

 

9. Surety Agreement: 

 

The applicant shall provide appropriate surety for the life of the project satisfactory to the Board of 

County Commissioners. 

 

10. Transfer of Ownership: 

 

If ownership of the CWECS is transferred from the CWECS Applicant identified in the original 

permitting documents to any entity, the new owner shall be responsible and accountable for the terms 

and conditions of the approved Conditional Use Permit, the Development Agreement, other applicable 

agreements, the zoning permit requirements, and all applicable requirements of the Zoning and 

Subdivision Regulations.  Notice of such transfer and acknowledgement by the new owner of 

compliance obligations shall be provided to the Zoning Administrator and the Board of County 

Commissioners. 

 

23-110 Requirements for Zoning Permit: 

 

If applicable, the following requirements shall be met to obtain a zoning permit from the County: 

 

1. No zoning permit application shall be accepted by the County until all required agreements listed under 

Article 23-109 between the Applicant and the County have been properly executed by the Applicant 

and the County. 

 

2. A zoning permit shall be required for the construction of each turbine and building within the approved 

CWECS accompanied by the payment of all fees as established by the County.  Construction shall be 

permitted to begin as outlined in the Development Agreement. 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-13 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

3. A Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPP) and NPDES permit from the Kansas Department of 

Health and Environment shall be finalized and submitted prior to the issuance of a zoning permit and 

the start of construction. 

 

4. Filing and maintaining a current FAA Determination of No-Hazard to Air Navigation document 

verifying each turbine, when constructed according to the approved development plan, will not 

constitute a hazard to aircraft. 

 

5. Oversized/overweight permit from the Public Works Department. 

 

6. Wastewater and well permits from the Health Department. 

 

7. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 permit. 

 

8. Kansas Department of Agriculture – Division of Water Resources stream obstruction and floodplain 

fill permit. 

 

9. The application for a zoning permit shall include, but not be limited to, a site plan showing the 

following information: 

 

A. The location of the structure or turbine and any other onsite facilities such as a control room 

or transformer on a survey prepared by a registered land surveyor showing the distance from 

the property lines.  The floodplain boundary (where applicable) should also be located on the 

survey.  The survey showing the turbine location submitted with the CUP application may be 

used provided the location of the turbine has not been re-located from the approved 

development plan. 

 

B. The turbine number and megawatt capacity. 

 

C. The location of above ground and below ground transmission lines. 

 

D. The location of the interior access road. 

 

E. An outline of any proposed site preparation activities involving removal of vegetation, 

excavation of soil, locations of soil stockpile, and restoration plans for the site after 

construction concludes. 

 

F.   The approved state and local floodplain development permits (where applicable). 

 

23-111 Construction Requirements: 

 

1. The CWECS Applicant shall inform all employees, contractors and others involved in the construction 

of the CWECS project of the terms and conditions of the approved Conditional Use Permit.  Violations 

of the conditions associated with the Conditional Use Permit are the responsibility of the CWECS 

Applicant, not the landowner. 

 

2. The County retains the authority to enter into a contract with a structural engineering firm licensed by 

the State of Kansas Board of Technical Professions to offer engineering services to the County as 

defined by the Development Agreement.  Documentation regarding each approved permit or 

inspection shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator.  Payment for the costs incurred by the County 

from the engineering firm shall be negotiated through the Development Agreement. 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 

Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-14 
 

DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

3. Confirmation from an engineering company the turbines comply with the development plan, the 

zoning regulations, and the conditions associated with the approved Conditional Use Permit. 

 

4. Prior to the start of, and continuously throughout construction and site restoration, the CWECS 

Applicant shall designate a field representative responsible for overseeing compliance with the 

conditions of the CUP.  The field representative shall be accessible by telephone and email as needed 

by the Zoning Administrator or his designee.  The field representative shall provide an address, phone 

number, and emergency phone number to the Zoning Administrator.  The CWECS Applicant shall 

notify the Zoning Administrator should a change be made in the field representative.   

 

5. Any off-site construction needs outside of the permitted CWECS Conditional Use Permit shall comply 

with all applicable Zoning and Subdivision Regulations. 

 

6. The CWECS Applicant, or its construction company, shall disturb or clear a site only to the extent 

necessary to assure suitable access for construction, safe operation, and maintenance of the CWECS. 

The contractor shall minimize the removal of trees and shall not remove groves of trees or hedgerows 

(shelter belts) without approval of the affected landowner.  During site clearance and construction, silt 

fences and other temporary erosion controls, as required by the KDHE erosion control permit, shall be 

installed, and left in place until new vegetation covers the ground around the turbines. 

 

7. Cleanup: 

 

The CWECS Applicant, or its construction company, shall remove all waste, scrap, and temporary 

erosion control measures that are the product of construction, operation, restoration, and maintenance 

from the site and properly dispose of it upon completion of each turbine. 

 

8. Operation & Maintenance: 

 

The CWECS Applicant shall file the following information with the Zoning Administrator: 

 

A. Operation and maintenance requirements (including the frequency of maintenance activities) 

for the turbines and transmission lines. 

 

B. The required width of transmission line easements and any necessary restrictions on land use 

development, buildings, and access within the easement. 

 

C. Any restrictions on participating property owner land uses, height of buildings, or location of 

building. 

 

9. Transfer of Ownership: 

 

If ownership of the CWECS is transferred from the CWECS Applicant identified in the original 

permitting documents to any entity, the new owner shall be responsible and accountable for the terms 

and conditions of the approved Conditional Use Permit, the Development Agreement, other applicable 

agreements, the zoning permit requirements, and all applicable requirements of the Zoning and 

Subdivision Regulations.  Notice of such transfer and acknowledgement by the new owner of 

compliance obligations shall be provided to the Zoning Administrator and the Board of County 

Commissioner 







AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #VII.B

AGENDA DATE: January 11, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Mark Vonachen - County Planner II

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Tabled from 12/14/2021: Planning Case # 2021-14 - A request to amend the jurisdiction of the Official
Zoning District Boundary Map as identified in Article 1-103 of the Zoning Regulations.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
On September 14, 2021 the County Commissioners directed the Planning Commission and staff to
review and consider amending the Official Zoning District Boundary Map by creating a new zoning
district for all areas of the county currently unzoned.  The new zoning district would only regulate the
establishment of a commercial wind energy conversion system by requiring a conditional use permit. 
All of requirements of the zoning and subdivision regulations will not apply to this new created zoning
district.
 
A proposed new zoning district and zoning map was created by staff.  A study session was held with the
Planning Commission on October 21, 2021 to review the proposal.  The Planning Commission set a
public hearing date of November 18, 2021 to consider the request and receive public comments.
 
After the public hearing, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the amendment to Article
1-103 and the proposed zoning map as submitted by a 6-0 vote.

ALL OPTIONS:
The County Commissioners may:
 
Approve of the amendment to Article 1-103 and the new zoning map as submitted.
Deny the amendment to Article 1-103 and the new zoning map as submitted.
Table the amendment and request staff provide additional information.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Staff recommends approval of the request to amend the jurisdiction of the Official Zoning District
Boundary Map.
 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to amend the jurisdiction of the Official
Zoning District Boundary Map.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
If approved, the Zoning Map will be amended by adding the CWECS Zoning District.





                                                                                                   

Date: December 8, 2021

To: Reno County Board of County Commissioners

From: Mark Vonachen, CFM – County Planner II

Re: Case #2021-14 – A request to expand zoning Countywide by creating the CWECS Zoning 
District and other associated text amendments.

This report and recommendation were prepared prior to the public hearing.

BACKGROUND

On September 14, 2021, the Board of County Commissioners directed staff and the Planning 
Commission to review and update the Comprehensive Plan and provide additional guidelines related 
to Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems.

The County Commissioners directed staff and the Planning Commission to consider amending the 
Comprehensive Plan to provide language which may permit the ability to prohibit the development 
of a commercial wind energy conversion system project in the current zoned area of the county.  
Directives were also given to consider amending the Zoning Regulations so that the development of 
a commercial wind energy conversion system in the current zoned area of the County may be 
prohibited.  Finally, consideration should be given to establishing a new zoning district which only 
regulates commercial wind energy conversion systems in the unzoned area of the County.

In order to provide the Planning Commission adequate time to consider these directives, the County 
Commissioners passed Resolution 2021-21 which places a temporary moratorium on commercial 
wind energy conversion systems within the unincorporated area of the County.  That moratorium is 
in effect until March 15, 2022.  

In order to consider expanding the zoning authority from its current boundary, several text 
amendments must be considered.  Those text amendments are the Table of Contents, Article 1-103, 
Article 1-105, Article 13, and the creation of Article 24.  Some of the amendment are discussed in 
Case #2021-13.  A summary of these proposed amendments is listed below.

The Table of Contents has been updated to add the proposed Article 24.

Article 1-103 proposes to expand the jurisdiction of the zoning map to countywide.

Public Works
600 Scott Boulevard

South Hutchinson, Kansas 67505
620-694-2976

Don Brittain, Director



2

Article 1-105 proposes to add the CWECS zoning district to the listing of zoning categories.  Some 
wording that might be confusing to citizens if the CWECS zoning district is adopted was eliminated
in the next paragraph.

Article 13 proposes to add the CWECS zoning district requirements for height, setbacks, parcel 
dimensions, and minimum parcel size.  It should be noted that most of these regulations are not 
applicable as the proposal before the Planning Commission is to only regulate commercial wind 
energy conversion systems.    No other zoning or subdivision requirements are applicable to a parcel 
zoned CWECS.  

Article 24 proposes to add the CWECS zoning district to the zoning regulations.  Article 24 states 
that any parcel zoned CWECS is required to apply for a conditional use permit to establish a 
commercial wind energy conversion system according to the definition in Article 23-103(1).  All 
other land uses are permitted by right.  No zoning permit is required for any structure.  Except for 
floodplain and the Sanitation Code, citizens owning property in the CWECS zoning are still governed 
as they have been previously.  Article 24, in turn, references the proposed Article 23 which is the 
wind energy conversion system regulations.  Article 23 has been tabled indefinitely by the County 
Commissioners pending review of this latest request.

ANALYSIS

There are two opinions on whether to expand zoning countywide for only commercial wind energy 
conversion systems.

A commercial wind energy conversion systems is one of the largest land uses a property owner can 
establish on a property.  The potential impact this type of land use can have on a neighborhood, a 
portion of a county, an entire county, or even multiple counties exceeds most if not all other types of 
land uses.  Other types of land uses, such as gravel pits, manufacturing facilities, or junkyards do not 
have the same impact that spans such a large land area.

Commercial wind energy conversion systems could be considered one of the few types of land uses 
that should require a conditional use permit wherever they may be installed in a County.  The 
conditional use permit allows the County the opportunity to regulate this land use and have a signed 
developer’s agreement on file that protects the County and Township infrastructure.  Without 
implementing zoning in this area of the County and requiring a conditional use permit, a company 
can begin construction on a project with no regulatory control from the County.  Without this 
regulatory control, a lot of damage could be done to the County and Township infrastructure.

Implementing zoning for only commercial wind energy conversion systems allows the County to 
have a developer’s agreement in place before any construction begins.  Maybe more importantly, it 
allows citizens living in this area an opportunity to come to a public hearing and voice their concern 
or support for a project.  Without this area being zoned, there will be no public hearing and no 
opportunity for citizens or the County to have concerns addressed.

The other opinion is that zoning the rest of the County to only regulate commercial wind energy 
conversion systems is not good planning practice.  Implementing zoning and subdivision regulations 
countywide is the proper method to permit the County and citizens to have a say in how any
development, not just commercial wind energy, may impact infrastructure and a citizen’s property.  



Zoning and subdivision regulations are the tools the County uses to ensure property is developed in a 
manner that does not impact infrastructure and to permit citizens an opportunity to attend a public 
hearing and provide comments on a project.

The opinion that there are less people in the western part of the County may be true.  However, 
development is still occurring, albeit maybe at a slower pace than the eastern part of the County.  New 
single-family dwellings and accessory buildings are being constructed.  The entire County should be 
fully zoned so all citizens abide by the same regulations.

There is no good reason to not zone the entire County will full implementation of the Zoning and 
Subdivision Regulations.  Land and buildings used for agricultural purposes are still exempt from the 
zoning regulations, just like in the eastern part of the County.  There are also many other County 
regulations and policies in effect across the entire County.  For example, the Sanitation Code, the
Floodplain Resolution, and all the Public Works policies which include culvert installation, buried 
utility installation, and permitting citizens to mow and bail the County ditch for the hay.

CONCLUSION

While there may not be support to fully implement Zoning and Subdivision Regulations countywide, 
the potential impact a commercial wind energy conversion system could have on the County and its 
citizens is too severe to deny this request and leave that portion of the County completely unzoned.  
The County cannot leave it to chance that a future wind energy company will voluntarily contact the 
County to negotiate a developer’s agreement prior to beginning construction on a project.  Zoning the 
western area of the County for only commercial wind energy conversion systems will permit the 
County and its citizens the opportunity to conduct a public hearing where all support and concerns 
can be heard, enter into a binding developer’s agreement, and ensure a project complies with some 
regulatory standards. 

For these reasons, staff, which consists of Don Brittain, Director of Public Works and Mark 
Vonachen, County Planner II, recommends approval of this request to amend Article 1-103 of 
the Zoning Regulations to expand the zoning jurisdiction countywide but only for commercial 
wind energy conversion systems.

OPTIONS

The County Commission may:

Approve of the amendment and zoning map as presented
Deny the amendment and zoning map as presented
Table the amendment and request staff provide additional information

On November 18, 2021, the Planning Commission held a public hearing.

Chairman Goertzen opened the public hearing.

Vonachen discussed the proposed amendment to Article 1-103 and the proposed zoning map.



4

Chairman Goertzen asked how this Board will handle a CUP if the zoning is approved.  Will a CUP 
revert back to the existing regulations now.

Vonachen responded that the hope is a CUP will be handled under the regulations found in Article 
23.  Article 23, which is currently being tabled, should be adopted before this item is approved 
because Article 24 references Article 23.  Further amendments may have to be done or additional 
reviews if for some reason the regulations are never adopted.

Commissioner Seltzer added that if we adopt the amendment to Article 1-103 and Article 23 has not 
been adopted yet, we are still putting in place the conditional use permit procedure for the current 
unzoned area.

Vonachen said yes.

Vice-Chairwoman French said is it possible the County Commissioners may want to send those 
regulations back to the Planning Commission because we were mainly looking at the southeast 
portion of the County.

Vonachen said that it is certainly a possibility the regulations could be sent back for additional 
revisions.

Vice-Chairwoman French added that if there is another divisive issue come up we may be back here 
again trying to add another land use.  That is a concern when you try and do just one land use

Vonachen agreed and said that is why he struggled with this recommendation.  The Board may recall 
the struggles for years past in trying to determine the “Top 10” land uses we may want to regulate.  It 
was difficult to decide and was ultimately dropped from consideration.

Commissioner Jorns questioned if staff anticipates amending the regulations for solar farms.

Vonachen responded that is up to the direction of the County Commissioners.

Chairman Goertzen invited audience members to address the Planning Commission.

Joe Hieger, 13200 E. Maple Grove Road, Mt. Hope, KS 67108 said if you are looking for more public 
involvement in cases, something to consider is moving away from the 1,000 foot public hearing 
notification requirement in state statutes.  The statute was never designed for 500-foot-tall wind 
turbines.

Jean Conkling, 21806 S. Broadacres Road, Pretty Prairie, KS 67570 reviewed her written comments 
to the Planning Commission and agrees with the proposed zoning map.  She wants to ensure whatever 
regulations are approved in Article 23 are applied to the unzoned area.

Vonachen confirmed those regulations will apply to the unzoned area.

Ron Hirst, appearing as a citizen, and not trying to influence the Planning Commission, stated he 
placed information in two rural newspapers and made some phone calls.  He has received no negative 
comments from citizens living in the unzoned area of District 2.



Gina Smith, 1716 E. Arlington Road, Hutchinson, KS 67501 is barely outside of the zoned area and 
would appreciate zoning guidelines in their area.  Many properties in her area already have land 
contacts for wind turbines.  More people who are affected by such a land use should be informed.

Vice-Chairwoman French commented that it is a real dilemma on how to inform people.  Notices are 
placed in the newspaper and on the website.  Mailings to citizens will cost more money that the 
taxpayers will have to pay for.

Dee Moore, 3805 W. Arlington Road, Hutchinson, KS 67501 asked that the rest of the county be 
zoned.

Wayne Mans, 14918 E. Maple Grove Road, Mt. Hope, KS 67108 wanted clarification that there will 
be limited zoning for the unzoned area of the county.  Without the limited zoning the county has no 
say in where a wind farm is placed and the company can place a turbine at any setback distance from 
any home.  He does not see any upside to leaving that portion of the county unzoned.

Vonachen said yes to all of his questions.

Jason Seiwert, 14202 E. Maple Grove Road, Mt. Hope, KS 67108 is in favor of the restricted zoning.  
He is glad a portion of the county was zoned in the last CUP so the citizens have a voice.

Margy Westfahl, 3907 E. Irish Creek Road, Haven, KS 67543, responded to Commissioner Jorns’ 
question on how to get more people involved.  She stated former Commissioner Bush came to the 
Planning Commission meeting and suggested meetings be held in the unzoned area and in some of 
the smaller cities.  There is no voice for the people living in the unzoned area.

Chairman Goertzen closed the public hearing.

There were no further comments or discussion from the Planning Commission.

Commissioner Seltzer moved to recommend approval of this request to amend Article 1-103 
expanding the zoning jurisdiction countywide but only for commercial wind energy conversion 
systems based on the testimony at the public hearing and the reasons presented in the staff 
report; seconded by Commissioner Jorns.

Commissioner Jorns commented we have been arguing and debating the correctness or incorrectness 
of living in a county that is only 1/3 zoned.  He is not sure this is the right thing to do but will support 
the motion.

Vice-Chairwoman French agrees with Commissioner Jorns.  This would have been the opportune 
time to consider full zoning to protect against all land uses.

Commissioner Jorns said full zoning may have been met with a lot of opposition.  Commissioner 
Hirst has not had any negative feedback and neither has Commissioner Jorns.  There is support for 
restrictive zoning so maybe this is the right time.

Commissioner Macklin expressed the same concerns as Commissioner Jorns and will support the 
motion.



6

Chairman Goertzen supports the motion with some hesitancy because we only have very rudimentary 
guidelines.  He hopes the County Commissioners adopt Article 23 prior to another CUP application.  
The regulations have been in the Commissioners possession for ten months.

Commissioner Martin confirmed that this amendment will require a conditional use permit to 
establish a commercial wind energy conversion system in the current unzoned area.

Vonachen said yes.

Vice-Chairwoman French thinks the County Commissioners should review the regulations again to 
ensure they are appropriate for the western part of the County. Maybe they are not quite right for the 
western part.

Commissioner Macklin responded that he was reviewing the regulations for the entire County, not 
just the southeast part.

Vonachen added that the regulations should have been developed with the whole County in mind 
even thought they would only apply to the eastern part of the County.  Some adjustments will have 
to be made based off of this new direction from the County Commissioners.

The motion passed by a 6-0 vote (Yes: Martin, Seltzer, Macklin, Jorns, French, and Goertzen).



~ 1 ~

Comments
Zoning Expansion

Case #2021-14

RENO COUNTY DEPARTMENTS
None

CITIES AND TOWNSHIPS
None

WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENTS – IN FAVOR OF THE PETITION
Dear Mr. Vonachen,

I AM a 20+ resident and a landowner in the unzoned areas in Reno County. I FERVENTLY AGREE TO Specialty 
Zoning for CWECS.

PLEASE protect and look after US as well as you are protecting and looking after the residents of Hutchinson.

Sincerely,

Dee Moore
Retired
Pretty Prairie MIddle School
Language Arts Teacher

Dear gentlemen,
I do not want wind turbines in my community or back yard and I am very concerned about this subject. I am very 
much in favor of the special zoning district proposal that I have read about. Please consider my feelings about 
this as well as many others in my community. Thank you.
Sincerely,
Cathie Strohl

Dear Sir,
I, as a resident of Reno County, approve of the creation of the Special Zoning District for Commercial Wind Energy 
Conversion Systems only. Our entire county needs to have at least some regulations in place as well as a voice in 
this process of wind turbine placement and operation.
I would also request special consideration be given to the nationally recognized wetland, Quivera National 

Wildlife Refuge, which is located in NW Reno County. This important location is a stopping point for thousands 
of migratory birds and should be protected even as we upgrade our energy systems.
Thank you so much!
Joyce Barker
Hutchinson, KS resident
Reno County resident
joyce.dnc.jb@gmail.com



~ 2 ~

620.694.7952
I, as a resident of Reno County, approve of the
creation of the Special Zoning District for Commercial Wind Energy Conversion
Systems only. Our entire
county needs to have at least some regulations in place as well as a
voice in this process of wind turbine placement and operation.

Melvin and Charlene Schwartz
Pretty Prairie

Regarding the map - 2021-14
If you’re aiming for prohibition in zoned areas of the county, then the most responsible action would be to also 
create the special zoning for everyone living in the remainder of the county - (Not just "super protection" for 
some vs "no protection" for the rest of the county.) Especially if prohibition in zoned areas pushes the CWECS 
out to the unzoned areas, then the special zoning district would be imperative.

I agree with the proposed amendment to create the Special Zoning district as outlined on the proposed zoning 
map. We would like to have in unzoned areas of the county the same regulations that have been in the process 
of being approved for zoned areas regarding CWECS for the past 2 years. (Or at least the same level of 
protection that is in effect in the zoned areas of Reno County regarding CWECS.)

Thank you for your time.

Michael Conkling
21806 S. Broadacres Rd
Pretty Prairie, KS. 67570

Regarding the County Zoning Map - 2021-14
If you’re aiming for prohibition in zoned areas of the county, then the most responsible action would be to also 
create the special zoning for everyone living in the remainder of the county - (Not just super protection for some 
vs no protection for the rest of the county.)
Especially if prohibition in zoned areas pushes the CWECS out to the unzoned areas, then the special zoned 
district would be imperative.

I agree with the proposed amendment to create the Special Zoning district as outlined on the proposed zoning 
map. We would like to have in unzoned areas of the county the same regulations that have been in the process 
of being approved for zoned areas regarding CWECS for the past 2 years.

Thank you for your time and all the work involved in the process of addressing these issues for our county. 

Sincerely,

Jean A. Conkling
21806 S. Broadacres Rd
Pretty Prairie, KS  67570

Reno County Planning & Zoning Commission, Mark Vonachen, Mr Partington, Mr Brittain, County Commission, 
et al, 

I am writing this email to you in lieu of attending the public hearings scheduled for November 18, 2021.
Unfortunately, my neighbor and dear friend just passed away from cancer and I need to be there for her family 
and her wake. I just cannot divide myself up on this. Her death is a big deal in several Reno Co communities and 



~ 3 ~

I can only imagine the timing will affect many Reno County residents and their decision of going to the meetings 
tonight.

That said, let's talk about zoning and our county. We NEED to add to Article 15-111 to prohibit CWECS in the 
currently zoned area of Reno County. Seriously we have fought and fought and worked on this for SO SO SO 
long. Let's get this taken care of!! Our county needs to finally take care of protecting the citizens.

Also, the unzoned folks need protection as well. How is it that Reno County government seems to have 
forgotten about the fact that most of the county is rural?! WE ALL NEED PROTECTED. The people have spoken.
Again and again and again. Geesh--LISTEN!

Any proposals that are given today to increase the security of our county in regards to limiting and mandating 
industrial wind facilities is a good thing. I support the text amendments to Article 1-105, Districts, Article 13, 
District Height, Area, and Bulk Regulations, and more specifically Article 15-111,
Prohibited Uses, of the April 2016 Edition of the Reno County Zoning Regulations by adding the “CWECS” Zoning 
District and adding a seventh item
to Article 15-11 which prohibits commercial wind energy conversion systems in the currently zoned area of Reno 
County.

I hope you will LISTEN to my written words. I would have been there but...I'm thinking you will understand.

God bless you in your decision making. 
Sincerely,
Susan Helten
10408 E. Smoots Creek Rd
Cheney, KS
Reno County

WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENTS – NEUTRAL ON THE PETITON
None

WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENTS – AGAINST THE PETITION
None



SMOOTS CREEK RD

OLCOTT RD

JORDAN SPRINGS RD

STERLING RD

SMOOTS CREEK RD SMOOTS CREEK RD SMOOTS CREEK RD

YODER RD

 

 

TITAN RD
SMOOTS CREEK RD

SALT MARSH RD MAPLE GROVE RD

RAYMOND RD

BROWNLEE RD

SYLVIA RD

HUNTSVILLE RD

AVERY RD

LANGDON RD

MAPLE GROVE RD

LERADO RD

ANDRE RD

PEACE RD

BONE SPRINGS RD

HODGE RD

SEGO RD

MAPLE GROVE RD

SALEM RD

FAIRVIEW RD

HIGH POINT RD

PARTRIDGE RD

CENTENNIAL RD

RIVERTON RD

DEAN RD

HERREN RD

WHITESIDE RD

MOHAWK RD

BROADACRES RD

VALLEY PRIDE RD

?Æ

McNEW RD

MAPLE GROVE RD

HALSTEAD ST

 

VICTORY RD

MAPLE GROVE RD

RAYL RD

WORTHINGTON RD

WOODBERRY RD

BOUNDARY RD

PRETTY PRAIRIE RD

BOUNDARY RD

PRETTY PRAIRIE RD

MN11

PRETTY PRAIRIE RD

BOUNDARY RD BOUNDARY RD

SAND CREEK RD 

 

WILLISON RD

  

HAVEN RD

BOUNDARY RD

SILVER LAKE RD SILVER LAKE RD SILVER LAKE RD SILVER LAKE RD SILVER LAKE RD

PRETTY PRAIRIE RD  

 SILVER LAKE RD

 

PRETTY PRAIRIE RD

SUN CITY RD

SALT MARSH RD

JORDAN SPRINGS RD SUN CITY RD

STERLING RD

SUN CITY RD
SUN CITY RD SUN CITY RD

  

 

SILVER LAKE RD

SUN CITY RD

PARALLEL RD  

 

?ç

AVERY RD

LERADO RD PARALLEL RD

WARRIOR RD

PARALLEL RD PARALLEL RD

YODER RD

PARALLEL RD

OBEE RD

MAYFIELD RD

KENT RD

 

 PARALLEL RD

SALT MARSH RD FOUNTAIN GREEN RD FOUNTAIN GREEN RD FOUNTAIN GREEN RD

HODGE RD

FOUNTAIN GREEN RD FOUNTAIN GREEN RD

RIVERTON RD

DEAN RD

MOHAWK RD

FOUNTAIN GREEN RD FOUNTAIN GREEN RD FOUNTAIN GREEN RD

RAYMOND RD

PLEASANT VALLEY RD

BROWNLEE RD

SYLVIA RD

NETHERLAND RD

OLCOTT RD

JORDAN SPRINGS RD

HUNTSVILLE RD

LANGDON RD

PLEASANT VALLEY RD

ANDRE RD

STERLING RD

BONE SPRINGS RD

PEACE RD

VISTA RD

PLEASANT VALLEY RD

SEGO RD

FAIRVIEW RD

SALEM RD

PLEASANT VALLEY RD

PARTRIDGE RD

HERREN RD

PLEASANT VALLEY RD

WHITESIDE RD PLEASANT VALLEY RD

?Æ

McNEW RD

HALSTEAD ST

SAND CREEK RD

YODER RD

OBEE RD

MAYFIELD RD

KENT RD

HAVEN RD

WILLISON RD

VICTORY RD

PLEASANT VALLEY RD

WORTHINGTON RD

RAYL RD

WOODBERRY RD

CASTLETON RD CASTLETON RD

LERADO RD MN11

CENTENNIAL RD

CASTLETON RD

HIGH POINT RD CASTLETON RD CASTLETON RD CASTLETON RD

IRISH CREEK RD IRISH CREEK RD
?ç

IRISH CREEK RD

BROADACRES RD

VALLEY PRIDE RD IRISH CREEK RD IRISH CREEK RD
?ý

LAKE CABLE RD

ARLINGTON RD ARLINGTON RD

LAKE CABLE RD BROADWAY ST

ARLINGTON RD

LAKE CABLE RD

ARLINGTON RD

LAKE CABLE RD

 ARLINGTON RD

GREENFIELD RD GREENFIELD RD

HUNTSVILLE RD GREENFIELD RD GREENFIELD RD GREENFIELD RD GREENFIELD RD GREENFIELD RD
?ý

GREENFIELD RD

LAKE CABLE RD

RED ROCK RD RED ROCK RD RED ROCK RD RED ROCK RD
?ç

RED ROCK RD

SWITZER RD RED ROCK RD

Im
LONG VIEW RD

WHITEHURST ST

TH
OM

PS
ON

 ST

TRAIL WEST RD SW

LONG VIEW RD LONG VIEW RD

HEATON RD SPUR ST LONG VIEW RD

?Æ

LONG VIEW RD

TRAIL WEST RD TRAIL WEST RD TRAIL WEST RD

ABBYVILLERD

SALEM RD

TRAIL WEST RD McCOY RD TRAIL WEST RD
TRAIL WEST RD

MORGAN AVE

MILLS AVE
Im

JORDAN SPRINGS RD

MILLS AVE

BONE SPRINGS RD FAIRVIEW RD

Im

MORGAN AVE

MILLS AVE MILLS AVE

VALLEY PRIDE RD

?ý
?Æ EALES RD

SALT MARSH RD

RAYMOND RD

ILLINOIS AVE BROWNLEE RD

SYLVIA RD

NETHERLAND RD

OLCOTT RD

HUNTSVILLE RD

LANGDON RD

AVERY RD

LERADO RD

ILLINOIS AVE

MORGAN AVE

ANDRE RD

STERLING RD

PEACE RD

HODGE RD

SEGO RD

ILLINOIS AVE CENTENNIAL RD

HIGH POINT RD

PARTRIDGE RD

RIVERTON RD

HERREN RD

DEAN RD

?ç

WHITESIDE RD

MOHAWK RD

Im

ILLINOIS AVE BROADACRES RD

 

MORGAN AVE

?ý?ç ?çMcNEW RD

Im

STROUD RD

MAYFIELD RD

OBEE RD

KENT RD

WILLISON RD

VICTORY RD

STROUD RD

WORTHINGTON RD

RAYL RD

WOODBERRY RD

BLANCHARD AVE BLANCHARD AVE BLANCHARD AVE BLANCHARD AVE

BLANCHARD SW
BLANCHARD AVE

 

 

 

Im
 LORRAINE ST

HALSTEAD ST ILLINOIS AVE

Im YODER RD

BLANCHARD AVE

BRANDY LAKE RD

MALLARD RD

HAVEN RD

ILLINOIS AVE

BLANCHARD AVE Im

CLARK RD CLARK RD

SALEM RD

CLARK RD

PARTRIDGE RD CLARK RD

6TH AVE ?Æ

?ý

 

  

  

?ç

AIRPORT RD
AVENUE G  

BUHLER RD

AVENUE G

4TH AVE

 

4TH AVE 4TH AVE

NICKERSON RD

WILSHIRE DR 4TH AVE

   

4TH AVE

 

BARNES LAKE RD 4TH AVE

17TH AVE

SYLVIA RD

NETHERLAND RD 17TH AVE 17TH AVE
17TH AVE

 

11TH AVE

23RD AVE

17TH AVE

SHADY LANE RD

17TH AVE

30TH AVE

43RD AVE

30TH AVE 30TH AVE

NICKERSON BLVD

PENNINGTONRD

 

LORRAINE ST

LUCILLE DR  30TH AVE

MAYFIELD RD

30TH AVE

56TH AVE

43RD AVE 43RD AVE

56TH AVE

?Æ
50TH AVE

43RD AVE

56TH AVE

43RD AVE

PLUM ST 43RD AVE

56TH AVE

43RD AVE

69TH AVE 69TH AVE 69TH AVE

?ý

YAGGY RD

HENDRICKS ST 69TH AVE 69TH AVE

TOBACCO RD

COTTONTAIL DR
 

KENT RD

56TH AVE

69TH AVE

82ND AVE

SALT MARSH RD

RAYMOND RD

LANGDON RD

HUNTSVILLE RD

AVERY RD

ANDRE RD

82ND AVE

LERADO RD

STERLING RD

BONE SPRINGS RD

PEACE RD

HODGE RD

82ND AVE?ý

FAIRVIEW RD

SEGO RD

SALEM RD

CENTENNIAL RD82ND AVE
?ý

ROY L SMITH RD

RIVERTON RD

HERREN RD

DEAN RD

SALLEE RD

WILSON RD

 

PENNINGTON RD

MONROE ST

82ND AVE

PLUM ST

LORRAINE ST

HALSTEAD ST 82ND AVE
85TH AVE

FRISCO AVE

SUNRISE RD 82ND AVE

BUHLER RD

WILLISON RD

VICTORY RD

WORTHINGTON RD

82ND AVE
RAYL RD

WOODBERRY RD

95TH AVE

SYLVIA RD

JORDAN SPRINGS RD

95TH AVE

101ST AVE

95TH AVE

RAILROAD AVE

HIGH POINT RD

88TH AVE

95TH AVE

NICKERSON RD 95TH AVE 95TH AVE

91ST AVE

MAYFIELD RD

MEDORA RD

?ç
95TH AVE

108TH AVE 108TH AVE 108TH AVE 108TH AVE 108TH AVE

3231 33 3534 36 3231 33 3534 36 3231 33 3534 36 3231 33 3534 36 3231 33 3534 36 3231 33 3534 36 3231 33 3534

30 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27 26

36

25

2019 21 2322 24 2019 21 2322 24 2019 21 2322 24 2019 21 2322 24 2019 21 2322 24 2019 21 2322 24 2019 21 2322 24

18 17 16 15 14 13 18 17 16 15 14 13 18 17 16 15 14 13 18 17 16 15 14 13
18 17 16 15 14 13 18 17 16 15 14 13 18 17 16 15 14 13

87 9 1110 12 87 9 1110 12 87 9 1110 12 87 9 1110 12 87 9 1110 12 87 9 1110 12 87 109 11 12

6 5
4

3 2 1 6 5 4 3 2 1 6 5 4 3 2 1 6 5 4 3 2 1 6 5 4 3 2 1 6 5 4 23 1 6 5 4 3 2 1

31

30

32

29

3433

28 27

35

26

31

30

36

25

32

29

3433

28
27

35 3136 32 3433

27

35 3136 32 33 34 35 3136 32 3433 35 36 31 32 3433 35 3136 32
3433

35 36

19 20 2221 23 1924 20 2221

26

23

30

19

25

24

29

20

28

2221

26

23

30

19

25

24

29

20

28

21

27

22

26

23

30

19

25

24

29

20

28 27

22
21

26

23

30

19

25

24

29

20

28 27

2221

26

23

30

19

25

24

29

20

28 27 26 25

18 17 16 15 14 1813 17 16 15
14

1813 17 16 15 14 1813 17 16 15 14 13 18 17 16 15 14 1813 17 1516 14 13 18 17

2221

16 15

23

14

24

13

7 8 109 11 712 8 109 11 712 8
109 11 712 8 9 10 11 12 7 8 109 11 712 8 109 11 12 7 8 109 11 12

6 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3
2

61 5 4 3 2 1 6 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 1 6 5 4 3 2 1

31 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 3136 32 33 34 35 36 31 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 36

30

19

29

20

28 27

2221

26

23

30

19

25

24

29

20

28 27

2221

26

23

30

19

25 29

20

28 27

21

26 3025 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27

22

26 3025 29 28 27 26 3025 29 28 27 26 25

18 17 16 15
14 1813 17 16 15 14 1813

24

17 16 15

22

14

23

1813

1924

17

20

16

21 22

15

23

14

1924

1813 17

20

16 15

21

14

23

1813

1924

17

20

16 15

2221

14

23

1813

1924

17

20

16

22
21 23 24

7 8 109 11 712 8 109 11 712 8 109 11 712 8 9 10 11 712 8 109 11 712 8 109 11 712 8

15

109

14

11

13

12

6 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61
5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 1

31 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 36 31 32 33 34 35 3136 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 36

30 29 28 27 26 3025 29 28 27 26 3025 29 28 27 26 25 30 29 28 27 26 3025 29 28 27 26
30

25 29 28 27 26 3025 29 28 27 26 25

19

18

20

17

2221

16 15

23

14

1924

1813

20

17

2221

16 15

23

14

1924

1813

20

17

2221

16 15

23 24 19

1813

20

17

21 22

16 15 14

23

1813

1924

17

20
2221 23

13 18

1924 20 2221 23 1924 20 2221 23 24

7 8 109 11 712 8 109 11 712 8 109

14

11 712 8 9 10 11 712 8

16 15

10

14

11 12 7

17

8

16 15

10
9

14

11

18

7

13

12

17

8

16 15

10
9

14

11

13

12

6 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61 5

9

4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 1

31 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 36 31 32 3433 35 3136 32 33 34 35 3136 32 343333 35 3136 32 3433 35 3136 32 3433 35 36

30 29 28 27 26 3025 29 28 27 26 3025 29 28 27 26 3025 29 28 27 26 3025
29

28 2727 26 3025 29 28 27 26 3025 29 28 27 26 25

19 20 2221 23 1924 20 2221 23 1924 20 2221 23 1924 20 21 22 23 1924 20 2221 23 1924 20 2221 23 1924 20 2221 23 24

18

7

17

8

16 15

109

14

11

18

7

13

12

17

8

16 15

109

14

11 7

1813

12 8

17 16 15

109

14

11

13

12

18

7

17

8

16

9

15

10

14

11

18

7

13

12

17

8

16 15

109

14

11

1813 17 16 15 14 1813 17 16 15 14 13

6 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2 61
5

6 5 4 3 2 61 5 4 3 2

7

6

12

1

8

5

109

4 3

11

2

7

6

12

1

8

5

109

4 3

11

2

12

1

Kingman CountyPra
tt 

Co
un

ty

37400I

36700

35400

36100

34100

33500

34800

32800

31500

32200

30200

29600

30900

28900

27600

28300

26300

25700

27000

25100

23800

24500

22500

21900

23200

21200

19900

20600

18600

18000

19300

17300

16000

16700

14700

14100

15400

13500

12200

12900

10300

11600

10900

9000

9600

8300

6400

7700

7000

5700

Sedgwick CountyKingman County I
28000

27400

5100

4400

2500

3800

3100

1100

1800

400 W.

100 E.

300

700 1100

2100

1600

3300

3800

2700

4400

5600

5000

6900

7600

6300

8200

9500

8900

10800

11500

10200

12100

13400

12800

28000

14700

15400

14100

26100

26700

26100

27400

26700

24800

25400

24100
24800

25400

23500

22800
23500

24100

22200

21500
22200

22800

21500

ISta
ffo

rd 
Co

un
ty

Pra
tt 

Co
un

ty

37900

37400

20900

20200

37200

35300

36600
36700

3540036100

35900

34000
34100

3350034800

34600 33300

32700
32800

31500

32200

32000 30100
30200

29600

30900

29400

30700

27500

28800
28900

27600

28300

28100

26200
26300

2570027000

26800

25500

23600

24900
25100

23800

24500

24200

22300
22500

21900

23200

22900

21600

21200

19900

20600

20300

19700

21000

18600

18000

19300

19000

17700

18400

17300

16000

16700

16400

1580017100

14700

14100

15400

13800

15100

14500

13500

12200

12900

12500

11900

13200

9900

11600

10900
10600

11200

10300

8600

8000

9300

9600

8300

9000

6000

7300

6700

7000

6400

7700

4700

4100

5400

5700

4400

5100

3400

2100

2800

3100

2500

3800

1500

1800 400 W

100 E

1100

00

500 E.

300

700 1100

2100

2700

1600

3100 4200

3600
3300

3800

4800

4400

5600

6300

5000

6700

7400

6900

7600

8700

8200

9500

10200

8900

11900

11300

10800

11500

12600

12100

13400

14100

12800

15200
15400

14700

20900

20200

18300

19600

18900

31400

1100

500 W.

900

1900

25001400

5400

6100 8000

9300

10000

10600

13200

13900

18900

14500

19600

17000

17600

17600

18300

15700

16300

16300

15700

17000

14400

15000

13700

15000

14400

13100

12400

13700

Se
dg

wi
ck 

Co
un

ty

13100

11800

11100

12400

11100

Ha
rve

y C
ou

nty11800

I

9200

10500

9800

9800

10500

7900

8500

8500

9200

6600

7200

6600

7900

7200

5300

5900

4600

5300

5900

4000

3300

4000

4600

2700

2000

2700

3300

2000

100 S.

1400

700

1400

700

1100

400 N.

1100

100 S.

400 N.

2300

1700

2300

1700

3700

3000

4300

3700

3000

5000

5600

5000

4300

5600

6200

6900

6200

6900

7500

8200

8800

7500

8200

10100

9500

10100

8800

9500

Harvey County
Rice County

Sta
ffo

rd 
Co

un
ty

37900

37200

10800

I

35900

35300

36600

34600

33300

34000

32000

31400

32700

29400

30700

30100

28100

27500

28800

26800

25500

26200

24200

23600

24900

21600

22900

22300

20300

21000

19700

17700

19000

18400

16400

17100

15800

13800

15100

14500

12500

13200

11900

11200

10600

9900

8600

9300

8000

7300

6700

6000

4700

4100

5400

3400

2100

2800

1100

500 W.

1500

McPherson CountyRice County

90000

500 E.

I

1900

2500

1400

3100

4200

3600

5400

6100

4800

8000

6700

7400

9300

10000

8700

10600

11900

11300

13200

13900

12600

14500

15200

10800
McPherson County I

BELL
MIAMI

ROSCOE

ALBION

NINNESCAH
SUMNER

LODA

GROVE
ARLINGTON TROY

CASTLETON

LANGDON
HAVEN

SYLVIA
WESTMINISTER CENTER

PLEVNA

LINCOLN
YODER

VALLEY

SALT CREEK
HUNTSVILLE ENTERPRISE

RENO

CLAY

HAYES MEDFORD

WALNUT GRANT MEDORA
LITTLE RIVER

26-10 26-9
26-8 26-7

26-6 26-4

26-5

25-10

25-9

25-8 25-7 25-6
25-5

25-4

24-10
24-9

24-8 24-7
24-6 24-5

24-4

23-9
23-10 23-8 23-7 23-6 23-5 23-4

22-10 22-9 22-8
22-7

22-6
22-4

22-5

Reno County Areas
where Wind Energy
is Prohibited/Allowed

Cheney
Reservoir

Legend

Other Features
CountyRoads

Road Centerlines

Railroads

Rivers and Creeks

Lakes and Ponds

City Limit Boundaries

Townships

County Boundary

County Zoned Areas

AG-Wind Prohibited

City

R-1-Wind Prohibited

R-2-Wind Prohibited

R-3-Wind Prohibited

V-1-Wind Prohibited

CWECS

Extraterritorial Jurisdiction

Map and zoning layers created/updated
October 15, 2021

· 1 inch = 5,180 feet
Scale for main map







































































AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #VIII.A

AGENDA DATE: January 11, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Monthly Department Reports

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Every month, departments have been asked to provide an update on the previous month's major
activities.  The reports are intended to keep the county commission informed about the appointed and
elected departments.  Attached are reports for Aging-Public Transport, Appraiser, Automotive, County
Clerk, Community Corrections, Communications,  and Emergency Management.

ALL OPTIONS:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Discussion Only

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
n/a



  

 120 W. Avenue B, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

(620)694-2911         Fax: (620)694-2767 

 
 

Monthly Report for December 2021 
Submitted by 

Barbara Lilyhorn 
Director- Department of Aging and Public Transportation 

 
 

 
Staff 

One Rcat driver’s position remains open as of 11/15/2021.  This is a full time Fixed Route position which 

is now being covered by either pulling drivers from Paratransit service or Overtime.   

Budget 

The Department of Aging has spent 71% and the Department of Public Transportation has spent 70% of 

the Department budgets respectively – a composite total of 70% of the entire 002 expenditure budget 

as of 12/27/2021. Composite revenue is 63%.  This is a snapshot of the budget to date, however, there 

will be matching fund encumbrances in the amounts of $46,203.20 and $78,000 for vehicle purchases 

resulting from two different grants. The production of these vehicles has been delayed due to the 

current backlog in the auto industry. There will also be transfers from the General Fund and the 

Department of Aging into the 002-27 Public Transportation account.  These transfers are for the monies 

pledged as match to the FY 2021 U.S.C. 49-5311 grant. These funds were not utilized because Rcat had 

eligible grant expenditures reimbursed at 100% for the Operations portion of the grant for the entire 

year and 100% of Admin expenditures for the first six months. The funds will be held in reserve. 

Bright Spots 

• The annual U.S.C. 49-5311 grant for FY 2023 (July 1, 2022, start date) was deemed complete by 

KDOT and now moves into the peer review to be held in early January. 

• Rcat was selected as a sample for the Coordinated Transit District 2 annual OMB A-133 financial 

audit for KDOT.  The audit was conducted in November and early December.  The auditor’s report 

was issued and had no findings. 

• The Department of Aging wrapped up the annual Medicare Part D Open Enrollment period on 

December 7.  The total number of people served this year was: 335. 



 

 
  RENO COUNTY 

   125 West First Ave.                                                      
                 Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

    (620) 694-2915 
Fax: (620) 694-2987 

 
 

 
 

 

RE:  Monthly report ending December 2021 

 

 

Dear Randy Partington, County Administrator: 

 

 

Staffing changes or issues  

The County Appraiser’s office is at full staff except for the County Appraiser’s position 

 

Financial summary 

 

• As of December, the Appraiser’s office will have spent approximately 87% of the year-to-date budget, 

with the majority of it being payroll.  The remaining expenses were primarily regular/seasonal monthly 

expenses.  

 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

 

Personal Property 

 

• Personal property staff is adding and removing personal property items as calls and documents come in. 

 

• Personal property staff is setting values on boats 

 

• Renditions have been printed and will be mailing on December 31st.   

 

 

Residential Department 

 

• Residential Field staff are site valuing all residential properties in the county.   

 

• Residential staff continues to do Payment under protest hearings. 

 

• Residential staff is finishing up some end of year compliance reports for PVD. 

   

 

Commercial Department 

 

•  Commercial staff is working on site valuing all commercial properties in the county.  



 

• Commercial staff is finishing up building permits. 

 

• Commercial staff will be holding Payment Under Protest Hearings 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 



  
120 W. Avenue B, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

620-694-2585 
Fax: 620-694-2767 

 
 
 
 

Automotive 

Budget YTD Summary 

As of December 29, 2021, we are at 95% of our overall budget. This amounts to $146,547 out of the 

overall budget of $154,752.  The internal service fund (fuel and parts) stands at 57% or $245,155 out of 

total of $428,000. 

 

Projects/Issues 

Currently looking at several fleet evaluation tools to create a written vehicle replacement plan to assist 

departments with budgeting for vehicle replacements. 

We do have an aging fleet with 13 vehicles over 15 years old and 20 vehicles with over 120,000 miles. 

This does not include RCAT as they follow the KDOT replacement schedule. 

For the year we have had 695 work orders come through the shop with 355 for the Sheriff’s 

Department, 201 for RCAT and the remaining spread out through the rest of the departments 

 

 



 

 
RENO COUNTY 

125 West 1st Ave. 
                                                                       Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

                                  (620) 694-2934 
      Donna Patton                                                                      Fax: (620) 694-2534 
      County Clerk                                       TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777 
 

 
 

 
 

Clerk/Election Monthly Report for December 

 

The Election’s Office is starting to get busy in preparation for the elections next year. We have 

had a few filings and a couple of inquiries into the 2 new Commissioner positions that will be 

on the ballot in August.  

 

In the Clerk’s Office, we will be working on gathering inventory from each office and getting 

W-2’s and 1099’s issued. Those will be mailed out in January.  

 

By the end of December, 100% of the year-to-date budget in the Clerk’s Office was used and 

75% in the Election’s Office, with most of that being used for payroll. With Jenna’s salary 

moving to the Clerk’s budget, it has taken more out of the Full-Time line item, but less out of 

the Election’s Full-Time line item.   

 

Donna Patton 

 

 

 



 

 

County Commission Report        December 2021 

 

Staffing 

There have been no staffing changes in December and there are no current vacancies. 

 

Projects/Concerns 

The Kansas Department of Corrections is implementing a new grant management system for the FY’23 

grants.  They are using AmpliFund and this should be in place mid-to-late February.  Training is expected 

to take place in January.  With this change the grant applications are to come out in late February but 

the deadline of May 1 will remain in effect.  Last year the grant applications came out in early December 

so there will be much less time to prepare the grants this year.   

 

The Kansas Department of Corrections juvenile staff have created a training manual for juvenile officers 

to navigate Athena, the offender documentation system.  The adult program staff are to be creating a 

version focused on adult documentation since this is slightly different in the system.  The KDOC adult 

staff have created a training for creating and using case plans in Athena.  This was a well done, helpful 

online training which will benefit all our officers.  Internally we have created “how-to” instructions to 

assist officers in many of the Athena documentation tasks.  Athena has been in use for nearly nine 

months but still has significant problems.  Even with the fixes being made the program is structured in a 

way that will be much more labor intensive for officers.  This is, and will, take more time for officers and 

be less user-friendly.  One of KDOC’s goals with the system was to be able to better access data but it 

does not appear this goal will be achieved in the near future, if at all. 

 

Between Thanksgiving, Christmas, and New Year holidays is a high violation time of the year for clients.  

For many normal, pro-social people with good coping skills this time of the year can be difficult and 

stressful.  For people suffering from mental illness, substance addiction, trauma, or all three, the 

problems can be much greater.  Typically drug test violations and non-reporting violations increase.  

Rather than reaching out to positive supports for assistance many clients are around negative friends or 

family.  Christmas can be a major stressor for people with kids who can’t afford gifts.  Others, who have 

lost custody of their children become overwhelmed with guilt as they deal with this difficult reality.  For 

many of our clients drug use is a regular part of their holidays as they’re either celebrating or trying to 

escape the sorrow of trauma or loss.  January typically becomes a time when officers have to try to reel 

people back in and get people back on track. 

 

Financial 

We are being frugal with supervision grants funds and are on track with where we would expect to be 

this time of year.  



 
 
 

 
Communications Monthly Report- December 2021 
 
Projects: The main initiatives for the month included the Landfill updates, Christmas Activities (toys for tots 
and shop with Sheriff), Vaccine and Guidelines updates 
 
Press Releases: 

• COVID-19 Booster doses for 16+, Burn Ban, Health Department Overdose Trends, Solid Waste Fees increase, 
Orientation Class for Prospective childcare Providers, High Nitrate Levels, Health Department following new 
isolation and quarantine guidelines 

Graphic Design:  
• Holiday Hours x 2 (social and Web), Reno County Hiring, Burn Ban, Landfill Tipping Fee, Property Tax 

reminder, Sheriff Banner graphic examples, toys for tots drive thru and video promo, 1 color logo for Health 
Department 

Website:  
• General updates for all departments daily, 6 news flashes (holiday hours x 2, burn ban, boosters, commission 

meeting reminders, Solid Waste Fees), Property Valuations, Overdose Report, updated quarantine/isolation 
guidelines 

Videos/Audio/Photos:  
• Clerk’s office video overview finished, Shop with The Sheriff photos, Toys for Tots Drive Thru photo, 

Courthouse Entrance crane/closing, Merry Christmas video, FOP lodges donation to Youth Shelter photo, pie 
delivery photos, County Commissioners/legislators meeting in Nickerson photos, Toys for Tot’s video 

 
Social Media:    

• Facebook Reno Co.: 2,847 followers (+25), 36 posts 
o Top Post: FOP Lodges donate to Youth Services (12.22.21) 

 9,889 reach, 192 clicks, 10 shares, 377 reactions, 26 comments, 1 hide post 
• Facebook EMA: 11,062 followers (+28) 10 posts 

o Top Post: Temporary Burn Ban (12.14.21)  
  14,144 reach, 171 post clicks, 189 shares, 239 reactions, 5 hide posts 

• Twitter: 799 followers (+5), 35 tweets  
o Top post: Health Department Maternal Child Fundraiser (12.22.21) 

 297 impressions, 22 engagements, 10 likes, 3 retweets 
• YouTube: 190 subscribers (+0) 3 videos 

o Top video: Reno County Commission (12.14.21) 
 20 views 

• LinkedIn: 34 followers (+0)  
 

• Other posts: HR job openings, Commission meeting promotion, holiday closings, landfill fees, flu vaccines x 3, 
nitrate levels, courthouse road closing x 2, Merry Christmas, Carriage Crossing Pies, Childcare orientation 
class, Property Tax first half due date, Overdose report, Landfill power outage, commissioner/legislators 
meeting in Nickerson, COVID boosters 16+, Toys for Tots, Shop with Sheriff Delivery, Handwashing reminder 
 

Other Activities: 2022 Communications Plan, Leadership Training 

 
Administration 

206 West First Ave. 
Hutchinson, KS 67501-5245 

620-694-2929 



  

Emergency Management 
 

Reno County 
206 W 1st Ave 
Hutchinson, KS 67501 
620-694-2974 

Staffing changes or issues (if any) 

There are no staffing changes to report.  In my department, I have a full time Emergency Management 
Specialist and a temporary full time administrative assistant.  That administrative assistant will become a 
permanent employee on January 3, 2022.  We continue to work hard to maintain daily operations. 

Budget YTD summary 

At the end of December, Emergency Management has used 104% of its year-to-date budget.  The overage 
is related to an increase in staff cost due to COVID.  

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) increase with the positive case rate in the community.  When the 
number of positive cases in the community are decreasing, so do the requests.  In the past month, the state 
has supplied us with nasopharyngeal swabs, viral transport media, ventilators, ventilator carts and stands. 

Emergency Management has received the fire districts workman’s compensations, and property and 
casualty renewals.   

On December 10th, the BOCC declared a local disaster for the wildfire like conditions.  With that 
declaration, Reno County used the Sedgwick County Fire Task Force to assist with a fire in Joint Fire 
District 1’s (Pretty Prairie) jurisdiction.  Also under that declaration, a temporary burn ban was put in 
place from 12/14/2021 at noon until 12/16/2021 at noon.  Emergency Management was notified of one 
person who initiated a burn during that period.  A major wind event occurred on 12/15/2021 which 
resulted in Hutchinson Fire Department, South Hutchinson Fire Department, and the County Fire 
Departments responding to approximately 134 calls for service. Reported damages include approximately 
80 power poles that had to be replaced, and wind damage to multiple residences and businesses.  Since 
most of the damages were insured, the county will not meet the county’s $253,781.80 threshold to qualify 
for State Public Assistance from a Major Presidential Disaster Declaration. 

The dry conditions continue to cause a wildfire concern in the county.  Emergency Management 
continues to monitor weather conditions daily and preplans wildfire task forces with the rural departments 
on critical days. 

The Rual Fire Administrator position is now open and receiving applications for potential candidates. 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #VIII.B

AGENDA DATE: January 11, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Financial Report

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Attached is a report to keep the commission informed of the county's financial status.

ALL OPTIONS:
Non action agenda item

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Discussion only

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
None



YTD BUDGET REPORT
As of 12/31/2021

Department Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
001  General Fund

00  Dept
Revenue

Interest 299,000.00 878,249.21 293.73%
Taxes 14,958,710.00 16,496,015.08 110.28%
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 640,250.00 339,012.68 127.81%
Reimbursements 752,500.00 803,311.90 106.75%
Other 9,685,990.00 95,180.27 0.98%

Revenue Total 26,336,450.00 18,611,769.14 71.69%

Expenses
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 (3,024.00)

Expenses Total 0.00 (3,024.00)

01  County Commission
Expenses

Personal Services 54,000.00 54,068.60 100.13%
Contractual Services 6,800.00 4,050.76 59.57%
Commodities 0.00 2,372.06

Expenses Total 60,800.00 60,491.42 99.49%

02  County Clerk
Revenue

Reimbursements 0.00 293.73
Revenue Total 0.00 293.73

Expenses
Personal Services 240,606.00 244,532.56 101.63%
Contractual Services 7,710.00 5,333.21 69.17%
Commodities 4,600.00 1,816.09 39.48%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 0.00

Expenses Total 252,916.00 251,681.86 99.51%

03  County Treasurer
Revenue

Reimbursements 0.00 249.24
Revenue Total 0.00 249.24

Expenses
Personal Services 161,431.00 163,374.13 101.20%
Contractual Services 44,450.00 16,975.32 38.19%
Commodities 32,150.00 23,635.88 73.52%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 500.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 238,531.00 203,985.33 85.52%

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

Department Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
04  District Attorney

Revenue
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 80,000.00 169,375.00 211.72%

Revenue Total 80,000.00 169,375.00 211.72%

Expenses
Personal Services 1,022,088.00 1,018,364.32 99.64%
Contractual Services 123,080.00 66,071.99 53.68%
Commodities 38,500.00 34,053.12 88.45%

Expenses Total 1,183,668.00 1,118,489.43 94.49%

05  Register of Deeds
Revenue

Licenses, Permits, and Fees 0.00 626,173.00 166.98%
Revenue Total 0.00 626,173.00 166.98%

Expenses
Personal Services 136,297.00 134,220.24 98.48%
Contractual Services 9,400.00 6,666.04 70.92%
Commodities 4,800.00 3,669.14 76.44%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 2,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 152,497.00 144,555.42 94.79%

06  Sheriff
Revenue

Licenses, Permits, and Fees 60,000.00 32,245.00 53.74%
Reimbursements 42,000.00 35,895.40 85.47%

Revenue Total 102,000.00 68,140.40 66.80%

Expenses
Personal Services 2,555,732.00 2,610,077.81 97.69%
Contractual Services 315,802.00 271,663.05 86.02%
Commodities 220,350.00 234,792.85 106.55%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 189,425.00 160,565.04 84.76%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 2,000.00 1,060.77 53.04%

Expenses Total 3,283,309.00 3,278,159.52 96.43%

07  Administration
Expenses

Personal Services 422,617.00 451,173.09 106.76%
Contractual Services 45,550.00 54,462.35 119.57%
Commodities 2,700.00 2,294.64 84.99%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 149.65
COVID CRF and ARPA Grant Expenditures 0.00 (8,506.74)

Expenses Total 470,867.00 499,572.99 106.10%
08  Unified Courts

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

Department Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
Revenue

Reimbursements 10,000.00 17,121.00 171.21%
Revenue Total 10,000.00 17,121.00 171.21%

Expenses
Contractual Services 543,103.00 474,980.64 87.46%
Commodities 53,900.00 45,574.32 84.55%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 0.00

Expenses Total 597,003.00 520,554.96 87.19%

09  Courthouse General
Revenue

Reimbursements 15,000.00 25,608.56 170.72%
Revenue Total 15,000.00 25,608.56 170.72%

Expenses
Personal Services 71,272.00 73,315.53 102.87%
Contractual Services 1,502,250.00 1,367,611.45 81.83%
Commodities 1,000.00 314.59 31.46%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 1,000,000.00 19,278.04 2.32%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 24,000.00 51,993.44 216.64%
Outside Agencies Appropriation 570,500.00 570,500.00 100.00%
Ambulance Services 1,525,764.00 1,095,235.04 71.78%
Emergency Communications 650,000.00 537,955.25 82.76%
Economic Development Projects 400,000.00 50,000.00 12.50%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 856,279.00 0.00
Commission Discretionary 20,000.00 4,655.87 23.28%
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 6,893,800.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 13,514,865.00 3,770,859.21 29.79%

10  County General
Expenses

Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 1,853.78
Transfers Out to Other Funds 0.00 856,279.00 100.00%

10  County General Total 0.00 858,132.78 100.22%

11  Maintenance
Revenue

Reimbursements 30,000.00 40,478.47 134.93%
Revenue Total 30,000.00 40,478.47 134.93%

Expenses
Personal Services 737,052.00 571,816.89 77.58%
Contractual Services 82,411.00 59,429.05 76.77%
Commodities 72,309.00 53,876.51 75.71%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 15,000.00 20,000.00 100.00%

Expenses Total 906,772.00 705,122.45 77.86%

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

Department Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
12  Planning Zoning Utilities

Expenses
Personal Services 60,611.00 60,610.93 100.00%
Contractual Services 18,400.00 10,056.59 54.66%
Commodities 700.00 102.07 14.58%

12  Planning Zoning Utilities Total 79,711.00 70,769.59 88.78%

13  Emergency Management
Revenue

Licenses, Permits, and Fees 0.00 1,000.00
Reimbursements 0.00 1,023.40

Revenue Total 0.00 2,023.40

Expenses

Personal Services 119,143.00 130,671.05 109.68%
Contractual Services 27,375.00 17,264.56 63.07%
Commodities 15,350.00 13,506.19 87.99%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 7,482.00 6,682.79 89.32%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 24,529.90
COVID CRF and ARPA Grant Expenditures 0.00 (13,311.51)

Expenses Total 169,350.00 179,342.98 105.90%

14  Jail
Revenue

Reimbursements 90,000.00 47,733.32 53.04%
Other 5,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 95,000.00 47,733.32 50.25%

Expenses
Personal Services 2,222,689.00 2,082,857.57 98.87%
Contractual Services 874,246.00 840,748.38 96.17%
Commodities 171,000.00 173,472.38 101.45%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 60,600.00 11,475.59 18.94%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 435.00

Expenses Total 3,328,535.00 3,108,988.92 96.78%

15  Human Resources
Expenses

Personal Services 194,872.00 183,342.69 94.08%
Contractual Services 55,724.00 40,089.87 71.94%
Commodities 16,500.00 6,089.50 36.91%

Expenses Total 267,096.00 229,522.06 85.93%

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

Department Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
16  Appraiser

Revenue
Reimbursements 3,000.00 9,253.67 308.46%

Revenue Total 3,000.00 9,253.67 308.46%

Expenses
Personal Services 585,769.00 525,793.28 89.76%
Contractual Services 84,245.00 60,048.95 71.28%
Commodities 22,000.00 14,450.53 65.68%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 10,000.00 8,500.00 85.00%

Expenses Total 702,014.00 608,792.76 86.72%

17  Election
Revenue

Reimbursements 500.00 726.66 145.33%
Revenue Total 500.00 726.66 145.33%

Expenses
Personal Services 116,540.00 106,953.80 91.77%
Contractual Services 185,775.00 125,145.78 67.36%
Commodities 14,800.00 8,372.68 56.57%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 4,000.00 1,375.55 34.39%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 58,296.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 379,411.00 241,847.81 63.74%

18  Information Technology
Revenue

Reimbursements 28,000.00 30,570.39 109.18%
Revenue Total 28,000.00 30,570.39 109.18%

Expenses
Personal Services 397,680.00 349,420.79 87.86%
Contractual Services 267,875.00 261,847.25 97.75%
Commodities 5,000.00 3,664.58 73.29%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 13,000.00 9,416.58 72.44%

Expenses Total 683,555.00 624,349.20 91.34%

24  Auto Center
Revenue

Reimbursements 20,000.00 19,760.00 98.80%
Revenue Total 20,000.00 19,760.00 98.80%

Expenses
Personal Services 124,390.00 125,059.61 100.54%
Contractual Services 14,667.00 13,310.43 90.75%
Commodities 9,695.00 7,636.04 78.76%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 6,000.00 561.52 9.36%

Expenses Total 154,752.00 146,567.60 94.71%

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

Department Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used

REVENUE TOTALS 26,719,950.00 19,669,275.98 73.61%
EXPENSE TOTALS 26,425,652.00 16,618,762.29 62.89%

Fund 001 General Fund 294,298.00 3,050,513.69

Beginning Fund Balance: 14,919,894.47
Ending Fund Balance: 17,970,408.16

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT
As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
002  Dept of Aging

Revenue
Taxes 254,689.00 258,820.37 101.62%
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 250.00 1.00 0.40%
Reimbursements 192,025.00 15,361.77 8.00%
Other 1,830,279.00 1,761,614.64 96.25%

Revenue Total 2,277,243.00 2,035,797.78 89.40%
Expenses

Personal Services 1,147,398.00 1,126,250.79 98.16%
Contractual Services 590,870.00 493,798.32 83.57%
Commodities 282,150.00 137,206.25 48.63%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 249,565.00 124,399.94 49.85%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 425.00 (11.06) -2.60%

Expenses Total 2,270,408.00 1,881,644.24 82.88%

REVENUE TOTALS 2,277,243.00 2,035,797.78 89.40%
EXPENSE TOTALS 2,270,408.00 1,881,644.24 82.88%

Fund 002-Dept  of Aging Totals 6,835.00 154,153.54

Beginning Fund Balance: 763,137.16
Ending Fund Balance: 917,290.70

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
003  Health

Revenue
Taxes 1,187,305.00 1,203,582.89 101.37%
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 10,000.00 3,404.45 34.04%
Reimbursements 850,000.00 1,206,895.46 141.99%
Other 1,282,470.00 1,251,678.35 97.60%

Revenue Total 3,329,775.00 3,665,561.15 110.08%
Expenses

Personal Services 2,445,944.00 2,555,039.98 104.46%
Contractual Services 585,600.00 763,395.42 130.36%
Commodities 261,700.00 230,915.03 88.24%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 5,000.00 19,051.56 381.03%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 (301.02)
COVID CRF and ARPA Grant Expenditures 0.00 (85,889.06)

Expenses Total 3,298,244.00 3,482,211.91 105.58%

REVENUE TOTALS 3,329,775.00 3,665,561.15 110.08%
EXPENSE TOTALS 3,298,244.00 3,482,211.91 105.58%

Fund 003-Health Totals 31,531.00 183,349.24

Beginning Fund Balance: 1,358,836.24
Ending Fund Balance: 1,542,185.48

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
004  Noxious Weed

Revenue
Taxes 63,951.00 64,435.61 100.76%
Reimbursements 25,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Other 42,703.00 20,500.26 48.01%

Revenue Total 131,654.00 84,935.87 64.51%
Expenses

Personal Services 79,518.00 79,231.57 99.64%
Contractual Services 3,800.00 2,357.14 62.03%
Commodities 36,550.00 33,008.00 90.31%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 10,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 129,868.00 114,596.71 88.24%

REVENUE TOTALS 131,654.00 84,935.87 64.51%
EXPENSE TOTALS 129,868.00 114,596.71 88.24%

Fund 004-Nox Weed Totals 1,786.00 (29,660.84)

Beginning Fund Balance: 57,791.63
Ending Fund Balance: 28,130.79

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
006  Special Bridge Fund

Revenue
Taxes 969,095.00 996,958.75 102.88%
Reimbursements 1,200,000.00 328,561.31 27.38%
Other 605,368.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 2,774,463.00 1,325,520.06 47.78%
Expenses

Contractual Services 1,725,000.00 119,349.12 6.92%
Commodities 350,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 675,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 176,240.00

Expenses Total 2,750,000.00 295,589.12 10.75%

REVENUE TOTALS 2,774,463.00 1,325,520.06 47.78%
EXPENSE TOTALS 2,750,000.00 295,589.12 10.75%

Fund 006-Sp Bridge Totals 24,463.00 1,029,930.94

Beginning Fund Balance: 2,937,495.13
Ending Fund Balance: 3,967,426.07

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget
Amt Received  /

Expended
% Rec'd /

Used
007  Public Works

Revenue
Taxes 4,963,448.00 5,017,029.47 101.08%
Reimbursements 275,000.00 13,564.52 4.93%
Other 1,411,995.00 1,776,045.71 125.78%

Revenue Total 6,650,443.00 6,806,639.70 102.35%
Expenses

Personal Services 2,139,249.00 1,913,735.13 89.46%
Contractual Services 307,550.00 179,416.66 58.52%
Commodities 3,212,500.00 3,370,955.81 105.38%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 557,500.00 515,126.49 92.40%
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 200,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 100,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 6,516,799.00 5,979,234.09 91.98%

REVENUE TOTALS 6,650,443.00 6,806,639.70 102.35%
EXPENSE TOTALS 6,516,799.00 5,979,234.09 91.75%

Fund 007-Public Works 133,644.00 827,405.61

Beginning Fund Balance: 1,456,446.02
Ending Fund Balance: 2,283,851.63

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
008  Solid Waste

Revenue
Reimbursements 20,000.00 381,693.25 1908.47%
Other 9,307,597.00 5,180,075.91 55.65%

Revenue Total 9,327,597.00 5,561,769.16 59.63%
Expenses

Personal Services 1,514,173.00 1,265,466.89 83.57%
Contractual Services 1,174,450.00 767,545.24 66.06%
Commodities 571,500.00 343,667.75 60.25%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 1,003,000.00 795,523.95 79.31%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 36.30
Transfers Out to Other Funds 400,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 4,074,707.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 8,737,830.00 3,172,240.13 36.41%

REVENUE TOTALS 9,327,597.00 5,561,769.16 59.63%
EXPENSE TOTALS 8,737,830.00 3,172,240.13 36.30%

Fund 008-Solid Waste 589,767.00 2,389,529.03

Beginning Fund Balance: 5,878,172.12
Ending Fund Balance: 8,267,701.15

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
009  Youth Shelter

Revenue
Reimbursements 1,168,995.00 1,407,927.38 120.44%
Other 943,736.00 504,279.00 53.43%

Revenue Total 2,112,731.00 1,912,206.38 90.51%
Expenses

Personal Services 1,696,194.00 1,506,394.58 88.81%
Contractual Services 115,925.00 70,559.34 60.87%
Commodities 53,100.00 24,811.63 46.73%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 15,200.00 11,130.00 73.22%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 132,312.00 81,137.34 61.32%
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 100,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 2,112,731.00 1,694,032.89 80.18%

REVENUE TOTALS 2,112,731.00 1,912,206.38 90.51%
EXPENSE TOTALS 2,112,731.00 1,694,032.89 80.18%

Fund 009-Youth Services 0.00 218,173.49

Beginning Fund Balance: 674,969.49
Ending Fund Balance: 893,142.98

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
013  Solid Waste Reserve

Revenue
Other 5,800,782.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 5,800,782.00 0.00 0.00%
Expenses

Contractual Services 355,000.00 152,578.23 42.98%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 5,445,782.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 5,800,782.00 152,578.23 2.63%

REVENUE TOTALS 5,800,782.00 0.00 0.00%
EXPENSE TOTALS 5,800,782.00 152,578.23 2.63%

Fund 013-Solid Waste Reserve 0.00 (152,578.23)

Beginning Fund Balance: 5,635,294.76
Ending Fund Balance: 5,482,716.53

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
015  Employee Benefits

Revenue
Taxes 6,620,542.00 6,756,995.63 102.06%
Reimbursements 1,350,000.00 1,460,277.71 108.17%
Other 3,515,184.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 11,485,726.00 8,217,273.34 71.54%
Expenses

Personal Services 3,803,000.00 3,589,368.35 94.38%
Contractual Services 5,000.00 54,733.00 1094.66%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 1,700,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 4,000.00 181.96 4.55%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 5,000,000.00 4,350,380.00 87.01%
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 800,000.00 0.00 0.00%
COVID CRF and ARPA Grant Expenditures 0.00 (36,563.52)

Expenses Total 11,312,000.00 7,958,099.79 70.35%

REVENUE TOTALS 11,485,726.00 8,217,273.34 71.54%
EXPENSE TOTALS 11,312,000.00 7,958,099.79 70.35%

Fund 015-Employee Benefits 173,726.00 259,173.55

Beginning Fund Balance: 4,783,260.34
Ending Fund Balance: 5,042,433.89

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
017  Training & Evaluation Center

Revenue
Taxes 512,789.00 522,426.58 101.88%
Other 10,772.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 523,561.00 522,426.58 99.78%
Expenses

Contractual Services 510,000.00 510,000.00 100.00%
Expenses Total 510,000.00 510,000.00 100.00%

REVENUE TOTALS 523,561.00 522,426.58 99.78%
EXPENSE TOTALS 510,000.00 510,000.00 100.00%

Fund 017-Training & Evaluation Center 13,561.00 12,426.58

Beginning Fund Balance: 25,859.08
Ending Fund Balance: 38,285.66

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
018  Mental Health

Revenue
Taxes 455,382.00 462,561.51 101.58%
Other 8,740.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 464,122.00 462,561.51 99.66%
Expenses

Contractual Services 452,025.00 452,025.00 100.00%
Expenses Total 452,025.00 452,025.00 100.00%

REVENUE TOTALS 464,122.00 462,561.51 99.66%
EXPENSE TOTALS 452,025.00 452,025.00 100.00%

Fund 018-Mental Health 12,097.00 10,536.51

Beginning Fund Balance: 21,290.55
Ending Fund Balance: 31,827.06

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
029  Special Park & Recreation

Revenue
Taxes 10,269.00 18,151.05 176.76%
Other 139.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 10,408.00 18,151.05 174.40%
Expenses

Contractual Services 10,269.00 10,269.00 100.00%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 139.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 10,408.00 10,269.00 98.66%

REVENUE TOTALS 10,408.00 18,151.05 174.40%
EXPENSE TOTALS 10,408.00 10,269.00 98.66%

Fund 029 Special Park & Recreation 0.00 7,882.05

Beginning Fund Balance: 4,409.37
Ending Fund Balance: 12,291.42

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
030  Special Alcohol & Drug

Revenue
Taxes 10,269.00 19,959.59 194.37%
Other 17,117.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 27,386.00 19,959.59 72.88%
Expenses

Contractual Services 10,000.00 10,000.00 100.00%
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 17,386.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 27,386.00 10,000.00 36.52%

REVENUE TOTALS 27,386.00 19,959.59 72.88%
EXPENSE TOTALS 27,386.00 10,000.00 36.52%

Fund 030 Special Alcohol & Drug 0.00 9,959.59

Beginning Fund Balance: 17,146.87
Ending Fund Balance: 27,106.46

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
083  County Bond & Interest

Revenue
Taxes 318,076.00 328,629.57 103.32%
Other 220,079.00 54,148.85 24.60%

Revenue Total 538,155.00 382,778.42 71.13%
Expenses

Contractual Services 379,756.00 374,441.00 98.60%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 1,000.00
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 150,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 529,756.00 375,441.00 70.87%

REVENUE TOTALS 538,155.00 382,778.42 71.13%
EXPENSE TOTALS 529,756.00 375,441.00 70.87%

Fund 083 County Bond & Interest 8,399.00 7,337.42

Beginning Fund Balance: 142,252.49
Ending Fund Balance: 149,589.91

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
085  Noxious Weed/Capital Outlay

Revenue
Other 109,776.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 109,776.00 0.00 0.00%
Expenses

Capital Improvement & Outlay 109,776.00 0.00 0.00%
Expenses Total 109,776.00 0.00 0.00%

REVENUE TOTALS 109,776.00 0.00 0.00%
EXPENSE TOTALS 109,776.00 0.00 0.00%

Fund 085 Noxious Weed Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00

Beginning Fund Balance: 89,776.58
Ending Fund Balance: 89,776.58

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
086  Health/Capital Outlay

Revenue
Other 336,041.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 336,041.00 0.00 0.00%
Expenses

Capital Improvement & Outlay 336,041.00 50,427.56 15.01%
Expenses Total 336,041.00 50,427.56 15.01%

REVENUE TOTALS 336,041.00 0.00 0.00%
EXPENSE TOTALS 336,041.00 50,427.56 15.01%

Fund 086 Health Capital Outlay 0.00 (50,427.56)

Beginning Fund Balance: 378,479.84
Ending Fund Balance: 328,052.28

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
087  Historical Museum

Revenue
Taxes 185,831.00 189,152.40 101.79%
Other 4,071.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 189,902.00 189,152.40 99.61%
Expenses

Contractual Services 185,000.00 185,000.00 100.00%
Expenses Total 185,000.00 185,000.00 100.00%

REVENUE TOTALS 189,902.00 189,152.40 99.61%
EXPENSE TOTALS 185,000.00 185,000.00 100.00%

Fund 087 Historical Museum 4,902.00 4,152.40

Beginning Fund Balance: 4,719.53
Ending Fund Balance: 8,871.93

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
093  Special Equipment Fund

Revenue
Taxes 218,341.00 221,380.14 101.39%
Reimbursements 124,605.00 130,289.13 104.56%
Other 668,343.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 1,011,289.00 351,669.27 34.77%

Expenses
Capital Improvement & Outlay 910,500.00 246,173.89 27.04%
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 95,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 1,005,500.00 246,173.89 24.48%

REVENUE TOTALS 1,011,289.00 351,669.27 34.77%
EXPENSE TOTALS 1,005,500.00 246,173.89 24.48%

Fund 093 Special Equipment Fund 5,789.00 105,495.38

Beginning Fund 684,312.89
Ending Fund Balance: 789,808.27

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
094  Special Road Fund

Revenue
Taxes 685,941.00 697,305.36 101.66%
Reimbursements 0.00 3,521.73
Other 87,211.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 773,152.00 700,827.09 90.65%

Expenses
Capital Improvement & Outlay 755,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Contractual Services 0.00 3,521.63

Expenses Total 755,000.00 3,521.63 0.47%

REVENUE TOTALS 773,152.00 700,827.09 90.65%
EXPENSE TOTALS 755,000.00 3,521.63 0.47%

Fund 094 Special Road Fund 18,152.00 697,305.46

Beginning Fund Balance: 681,589.21
Ending Fund Balance: 1,378,894.67

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
098  Capital Improvement Program

Revenue
Taxes 646,272.00 662,461.05 102.50%
Other 432,224.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 1,078,496.00 662,461.05 61.42%
Expenses

Capital Improvement & Outlay 812,000.00 461,569.19 56.84%
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 250,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 1,062,000.00 461,569.19 43.46%

REVENUE TOTALS 1,078,496.00 662,461.05 61.42%
EXPENSE TOTALS 1,062,000.00 461,569.19 43.46%

Fund 098 Capital Improvement Program 16,496.00 200,891.86

Beginning Fund Balance: 482,206.01
Ending Fund Balance: 683,097.87

1/4/2022



YTD BUDGET REPORT

As of 12/31/2021

Fund Adopted Budget Actual Amount
% Rec'd /

Used
180  Internal Services

Revenue
Reimbursements 678,000.00 478,333.64 70.55%
Other 71,568.00 0.00 0.00%

Revenue Total 749,568.00 478,333.64 0.64
Expenses

Commodities 678,000.00 486,758.34 0.72
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies 71,568.00 0.00 0.00%

Expenses Total 749,568.00 486,758.34 0.65

REVENUE TOTALS 749,568.00 478,333.64 63.81%
EXPENSE TOTALS 749,568.00 486,758.34 64.94%

Fund 180 Internal Services 0.00 (8,424.70)

Beginning Fund Balance: 112,489.42
Ending Fund Balance: 104,064.72

1/4/2022



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #XI.A

AGENDA DATE: January 11, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Board of County Commissioners

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Reorganization of the Board of County Commissioners

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
K.S.A 19-219 states that the organization of the board shall be done on the second Monday in January
of each year, or within thirty (30) days thereafter, and organize by electing one of their number
chairman for a term of one (1) year who shall preside at the meeting and at all other meetings during
such year, if present; but in case of the chairman's absence, a temporary chairman may be elected from
the members present.

ALL OPTIONS:
Elect a Chairperson and Vice-chair.
Table until a future meeting date (not to exceed 30 days beyond January 10, 2022).

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Appoint a board member as Chairperson and appoint another board member as Vice-Chair


	01-11-2022 AGENDA.pdf (p.1-2)
	06.B SO Truck Purchase.pdf (p.3-13)
	06.C SO Vehicles Purchase.pdf (p.14-35)
	06.D Res Stop Sign Mohawk-Clark.pdf (p.36-37)
	07.A PlanCase2020-09 CWECS Regulations.pdf (p.38-79)
	07.B PlanCase2021-14 Zoning District Boundary Map.pdf (p.80-98)
	07.C Wage Study Pay Scale.pdf (p.99-125)
	08.A Dept Reports.pdf (p.126-134)
	08.B Financial Report.pdf (p.135-152)
	Reno-201-2021 - Cover Page
	Reno-201-2021 - Financial Report.pdf

	11.A Board Reorganization.pdf (p.153)

